
Mayor 
Kristin Smith 
 

Council Members 
Debra Adams 
Aaron Hansen 
Kasey Kinsman 
Michael Mickelson 
Wendy Ranney 
Cathy Sherman 
David Zastrow 
 

City Manager 
Samantha 
Greenwood 
 

City Clerk 
Susan Bourgeois 
 

Deputy City Clerk 
Colette Gilmour 
 

Regular City Council Meeting   
August 6, 2025 @ 7:00pm    

Cordova Center Comm Rooms 
Agenda 

 

A. Call to order  
 

B. Invocation, pledge of allegiance                      
I pledge allegiance to the Flag of the United 
States of America, and to the republic for which it 
stands, one Nation under God, indivisible with 
liberty and justice for all.  
   

C. Roll call  
Mayor Kristin Smith, Council members Debra 
Adams, Aaron Hansen, Kasey Kinsman, Michael 
Mickelson, Wendy Ranney, Cathy Sherman, and 
David Zastrow 

 

D. Approval of Regular Agenda…....................................... (voice vote) 
 

E. Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest and Ex Parte 
Communication 
 conflicts as defined in CMC 3.10.010 should be declared, then Mayor rules whether member should be recused, Council 
may appeal the Mayor’s ruling  
 ex parte should be declared here, the content of the ex parte should be explained when the item comes before Council, 
ex parte does not recuse a member, it is required that ex parte is declared and explained 

 

F. Communications by and Petitions from Visitors 
1. Guest Speakers – none 
2. Audience comments regarding agenda items…………..………..…………………..…………... (3 minutes per speaker) 
3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions                   (Hospital Board, School Board, etal) 
 

G. Approval of Consent Calendar…………..………..…………………………….……………..………..... (roll call vote) 
4. Minutes: a. None 
5.  Per Charter Section 2-8 and Cordova Municipal Code 3.12.022, recordation of excused absences 

of Council members Hansen and Zastrow from the July 16, 2025, Regular Meeting. 
6. Chinook Auto Rental Business License Transfer……………………………………………………………………(page 1) 
 

H. Approval of Minutes – in Consent Calendar 

I. Consideration of Bids/Proposals/Contracts - none 
 

J. Reports of Officers  
7. Mayor’s Report………………….………………………………………………………………...………………………. (page 2)  
8. City Manager’s Report……………….………………………………………………...………………………………... (page 3) 
 a. Public Works Department mid-summer update………………………………………………….................... (page 5) 
 b. Staff report regarding correspondence item 11.c. ………………………………………………………….... (page 8) 
9. City Clerk’s Report  
10. Staff Reports – 2Q, 2025 Quarterlies:  

a. Cordova Harbor & Port, Harbormaster Tony Schinella………………….……………….…….........…... (page 9) 
 

K. Correspondence  
11. City Council correspondence primer: correspondence policies & procedures……………..…………….... (page 11) 
 a. 07-17-25 DNR email with request for comments: non-competitive sale of ADL 68214, competitive… (page 12) 
 tidelands lease of ADL 28205, and noncompetitive tidelands lease of ADL 214997 
 b. 07-22-25 Letter from Mayor Smith, 2025-26 AMHS ferry schedule comments………………………..…. (page 32) 
 c. 07-22-25 UAA public comment notice for Whiskey Ridge subdivision development & disposal plan..(page 33) 
 d. 07-29-25 Thank you card from the CHS Class of 2025…………………..……………..…………………..... (page 39) 



Executive Sessions per Cordova Municipal Code 3.14.030 
 subjects which may be considered are: (1) matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect upon the finances of the 

government; (2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person; provided that the person may request a public discussion; (3) 
matters which by law, municipal charter or code are required to be confidential; (4) matters involving consideration of governmental records that by law are 
not subject to public disclosure. 

 subjects may not be considered in the executive session except those mentioned in the motion calling for the executive session, unless they 
are auxiliary to the main question 

 action may not be taken in an executive session except to give direction to an attorney or labor negotiator regarding the handling of a specific 
legal matter or pending labor negotiations 

 

Regular Meetings of the Cordova City Council are live streamed on the City’s YouTube  https://www.youtube.com/@CityofCordovaAlaska/streams 
or are available there for viewing or audio-only by the next business day 

 
if you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend city-sponsored functions, contact 907-424-6200 for assistance. 

full City Council agendas and packets available online at www.cityofcordova.net  

L. Ordinances and Resolutions  
12. Ordinance 1232……………………………………………………………….…………………… (roll call vote)(page 40) 

An ordinance of the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska amending Cordova Municipal Code 
Section 6.12.040–Exceptions, to allow the City Manager to authorize use permits to except special 
events held at ski hill, from the provisions of 6.12.030–Alcoholic beverages-consumption in public 
places – 2nd reading 

13. Ordinance 1233……………………………………………………………….…………………… (roll call vote)(page 42) 
An ordinance of the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska amending Cordova Municipal Code 
Section 4.16.050–Residency requirement, to replace ‘city limits’ with ‘greater Cordova area’ and to 
clarify and further define residency – 2nd reading 

14. Resolution 08-25-21……………………………………………………………….…….………… (voice vote)(page 45) 
A resolution of the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska adopting the City of Cordova 
Comprehensive Trails Plan 2025 
 

M. Unfinished Business 
 

N. New & Miscellaneous Business 
15. Pending Agenda, CIP List, Calendar, Elected & Appointed Officials lists………............................... (page 129) 
 

O. Audience Participation 
 

P. Council Comments 
 

Q. Executive Session  
The City Council is permitted to enter an executive session if an explicit motion is made to do so calling out the subject to be discussed and if that subject 
falls into one of the 4 categories noted below. Therefore, even if specific agenda items are not listed under the Executive Session header on the agenda, 
any item on the agenda may trigger discussion on that item that is appropriate for or legally requires an executive session. In the event executive session 
is appropriate or required, Council may make a motion to enter executive session right during debate on that agenda item or could move to do so later in 
the meeting. 
 

R. Adjournment 
 

 
 

 
 
 



Page 1 of 1 

AGENDA ITEM 6 
City Council Meeting Date:  8/6/25 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

FROM: Samantha Greenwood, City Manager 

DATE: 7/25/25 

ITEM: Chinook Auto Rental Business License Transfer Application

NEXT STEP:  Council approves  
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

___ ORDINANCE   ___  RESOLUTION 
  _X_ MOTION   ___ INFORMATION 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:

Chinook Auto Rental has changed ownership, and the new owners have applied for a transfer of a 
business license that includes vehicle rentals and a for-hire vehicle service.  Per City Code Chapter 
6.24.070 – License - Transferability, this transfer must come before Council for approval. 

Chinook Auto Rental has met each of the following requirements for this license. 
• State of Alaska Business License
• City of Cordova Business License
• Chauffeur Licenses – Elijah Helms
• Vehicle Licenses – Elijah Helms and Natalie Helms
• Vehicles Inspected, Fees paid, and Proof of Insurance for all vehicles documented

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP:

“I move to approve the transfer of Chinook Auto Rental’s business license.” 

I am recommending that City Council approves this license application.  All required steps have been 
completed in accordance with City Code for this business to operate. 

1



MAYOR’S REPORT 

Date: July 31, 2025 

To: Cordova City Council 

From: Mayor Kristin Smith 

Housing:  People have probably noticed that the University of Alaska has issued a Public Notice 
for Disposal and Development of a 32-acre parcel in the Whiskey Ridge Subdivision area.  In my 
“day job” role at the PWS Economic Development District, I’ve been talking with RurAL CAP 
(Rural Alaska Community Action Program) staff about opportunities for taking advantage of 
programs designed to increase housing stock. 

One possible scenario for ensuring the creation of affordable (with a small “a”, distinguished 
from the state and federal definition of “Affordable”) housing for Cordova is to collaborate with 
RurAL CAP on a mutual self-help program that would involve Cordova residents directly.  In 
contrast to the University selling to a private developer, who would likely be motivated to 
maximize her or his financial gain, supporting a sale of some of the property to RurAL CAP 
would allow RurAL CAP to have site control and oversee development of the property in 
partnership with future homeowners, who contribute their “sweat equity” to constructing homes 
on sub-divided lots.  

RurAL CAP’s web site explains that “The program operates on the principles of sweat equity. 
Groups of six to 12 participants build one another’s homes, working together under the direction 
and coaching of a RurAL CAP construction supervisor. These families must perform at least 65% 
of the labor and work at least 35 hours per week. Homebuyers work on all homes in the project, 
and no one moves in until all the homes are finished. Once completed, a community of single-
family homes replaces the once vacant lot. The participants’ sweat equity eliminates the need for 
a down payment and reduces the size of their mortgage.” Prospective homeowners must submit a 
pre-application and a credit information release form.  Homes are limited to 1,500 sq. ft. See 
RurAL CAP’s web site for more detail in its FAQs. 

I mention this to the City Council because RurAL CAP will not pursue such a scenario without 
being invited by the community to be a partner in housing development. And RurAL CAP will 
need to demonstrate support from the City of Cordova to justify asking the University for a 
slightly lower than fair market value price for the land. RurAL CAP operates in partnership with 
the USDA Rural Development program and the Alaska Housing Finance Corporation. 

Comments on the University’s Disposal and Development Plan are due August 22, 2025.  The 
City could request a presentation from RurAL CAP housing program staff for its August 20, 
2025 meeting (if there is one, or at a special – probably shorter -- meeting if there isn’t). 

2

https://ruralcap.org/client-services/housing/mutual-self-help-housing/


Samantha Greenwood 
City manager  

Jobs 

• Communication Clerk – Applications received, reviewing and interviewing
• Cordova Center Coordinator – Job accepted
• Finance Director- Job accepted
• Chief of police – No Applicants
• Lifeguard – No Applicants
• Public Safety Officer – No Applicants
• DMV - Applications received, reviewing, and interviewing

Resource Development Council Lunch 

• I, along with department heads, attend the lunch.  We spoke to the group about the city's
services, facilities, issues, and hopes.  Cathy Renfeldt coordinated the event and
participated by providing the group with information about tourism and Chamber activities.
There was a good discussion and exchange of questions between the group and the City.

Pool Update 

After installing new gaskets and covers on the hydrostatic relief valves, some leaking 
persisted. To continue to troubleshoot the water loss we then temporarily capped and 
banded the plumbing at the valve assemblies and added water to the pool again. The leak 
rate slowed and stabilized about one foot of water. This suggests the valve components are 
not the only cause of water loss. This now makes the third failure found since we closed in 
May. 

The investigation now points to a likely leak in the main drain system. With no as-built 
plumbing documentation, combined department teams from Public Works, Parks & 
Recreation and the Cordova Center manually located the drain connection, but the current 
scope could not reach the suspect area. Once the new inspection equipment arrives, we 
plan to rescope from an alternate access point. This drain runs under the pool liner and 
shell with no access to open and view possible issues. We have been working diligently and 
will continue to do so in hopes to get our pool running again.  

Skaters’ Cabin Update 

As of July 31st, the current structure at Skaters Cabin is closed. At this time, we are about 
halfway to the fundraising goal to have it decommissioned. The community can help 
support the project by liking and sharing our posts on social media about our fund raising. 

3



Samantha Greenwood 
City manager  

efforts, ensuring wide visibility. We are also searching grant opportunities (we already have 
a few that we will be applying for this year) and reaching out to community organizations for 
support.  

We have set up GLs in the general fund for donations to the cabin. Any donations made will be 
added to that account and only used for the Skaters’ Cabin rebuild project. Other  

• Continue to work with the Fire Department
• Working with HR to update and improve onboarding, offboarding, and other HR processes.
• Meet with Deputy Clerk about file structure for implementing records retention.
• Meet with Covered Spaces to talk about Breakwater Trail Park – Have pulled together a

group to meet every other week to go over the parking, snow dump, and other city thoughts.
We will have meetings with covered spaces once we have vetted our ideas.

• Staff meeting, reviewed council meeting, and got department head updates.
• Working with Sheryl on a list for the new finance director and roughing out a budget

schedule for the fall.
• Meet with Hannah Sanders, discussed some grant opportunities and EMS.

4



Public Works Mid Summer Update - 7/30/2025

Water Supply

Rufuse

Chip Seal

The summer of 2025 has been one of long stretches of beautiful sunny weather and a 
continuous flow of salmon into our local processors. This combination, while desirable to 
those in the community, has taken a toll on our water supply. The mellow winter and low 
snowpack have also contributed to the current situation.

We are not at a level of concern similar to that of the 2019 drought. But with an uncertain 
forecast ahead we have begun taking steps to conserve water. This has including publishing 
notices to the public requesting that they assist with conserving water where possible. We 
have also reached out to the processor to request that they implement conservation practices as 
well.

Staff will continue to monitor our existing supply and the future weather forecast and will 
publish additional notices as necessary.

The remaining City dumpster truck has been repaired and is back in service. The City of 
Valdez was gracious and has loaned us one of their dumpster trucks to use while we work on 
replacing the one that was totaled in the accident. 

Staff is researching costs and delivery times for new trucks. We currently believe it will be 
approximately 8 to 12 months to receive a new truck once it is ordered. Staff will come back 
to council in the near future to discuss finance options.

While the dry weather has been the bane of the Water Division, the Streets Division 
(including mechanics) have been taking full advantage of it to preform chip seal work around 
the city. I want to give a special shout out to the crew as chip sealing is an all hands on deck 
operation that requires extensive preparation and coordination. Additionally, five of the 
seven crew members have never performed this work before but have picked it up quickly 
and have done a stellar job.

So far chip seal repair work has occurred at the following locations:

Saddle Point, Whiskey Ridge, Kimmick Way, Orca Inlet Dr, Ski Hill Rd, Eyak Dr, and the 
intersection of Council and Railroad Ave.

Additional chip seal repair is planned throughout town as weather allows through the end of 
the summer.

5



6



7



Friday July 01, 2025 

Re: Development and Disposal Plan Cordova Subdivision 
https://www.alaska.edu/ualand/public-notices/2025/2025.07.22-Cordova-Subd-Public-Notice.php 

The University of Alaska has published their preliminary plan for development and disposal of 
Sections 29 & 32 within Township 15 S. Range W. Copper River Meridian Cordova Recording 
District. Locally this area is known as Whisky Ridge and is located off of Whitshed Road. The City 
is in support of opening up new lands to development.  

Public comment has been request by the University of Alaska Land Management Office. The City 
plans on giving public comment regarding this proposed development. However, we want to make 
it known that this subdivision is at the conceptual stage and has not yet been evaluated by the 
Planning and Zoning Department to see if it meets the City code requirements for subdivision and 
zoning.  

Amanda Hadley Coward 
City Planner 
P.O. Box 1210 
601 First Street 
Cordova, AK 99574 
Office Phone: 907.424.6200 
Planning Phone: 907.424.6224 

8

https://www.alaska.edu/ualand/public-notices/2025/2025.07.22-Cordova-Subd-Public-Notice.php


Annual Stalls Assigned: 650 out of 700 Total Slips 92% Occupancy as of 6/30/25 

Apr May  Jun Total 
Vessels Charged Daily Rate  5  10         22       37 
Vessels Charged Monthly Rate  1  5  5     11 
Vessels Impound Status 

Port Arrivals: 

 36  15  4   4 

   Shoreside   0  2       1  3       
  Samson Tug & Barge  3  1  3  7 

 Gallons 

Used Oil Collected (Jan-June)   6950 

Used Oil Delivered (Jan-June)   2600 

Used oil shipped out 2025  4800 

2 Vessels Towed   
42 Vessels Pumped    
34 Vessel Bilges Pumped    

10

    GENERAL ACTIVITIES 

• Facility rounds twice daily

• Cleaned and restocked restrooms daily

• Shipped out 2750 gallons of used anti-freeze

• Shipped out 4800 gallons of used oil

• Installed new electrical pedestal in North harbor

• Picked up trash in the Harbor and Shipyard

• Sent out monthly invoices

• Marine Exchange of Alaska conducted FSP audit. All satisfactory

• Installed new water fountain with bottle filler in harbor office hallway

• Installed two fish cleaning stations in South Harbor

• Installed new 72-hour parking signs around the harbor

• Repaired water leak in North Harbor

• Repaired multiple water leaks in South Harbor

• One callout for 911 phones activation

TO: City Manager/City Council 

FROM: Harbormaster Schinella 

DATE:    7/20/25 

RE:    2nd Quarter report 01 April 2025 – 30 Jun 2025 

9



• Conducted 51 vessel lifts YTD for 2025

• Received camera for DDF and additional camera for Shipyard

• Conducted 35.5 hours of security detail Samson barge offloads

• Greased fittings on Travelift

• Changed oil in Travelift drive motors

• Received repaired Travelift remote and receiver from service center

• Waiting on quote to repair dock at South harbor boat ramp

• Installed new bushings and pins on Northfill boat ramp

• Installed new pins on South harbor boat ramp support arms

• Installed car stops in front of harbor office

• Transpac Marine conducted annual warranty site visit of South Harbor. All satisfactory

• Bering Industrial made some repairs to South harbor water system. Held septic pump out

training for harbor crew. Replaced heat trace for DDF potable water

• PEI finished installed electrical power to South harbor grid

• Cut brush in the North Fill and South area

• Delivered 1500 gals of used oil to High School

• Delivered 1900 gals of used oil to City Shop

• Aurora Crane Company is looking into excessive noise issue with the 10,000lb crane

South Harbor Project punch list items

1. Wireless meter reading system data correction

2. Install new crane on Three stage dock this fall

The Drive Down Dock is getting a lot of use 

10



Council Packet Correspondence Primer: 
Communicating with Your Elected Cordova Officials 

This primer provides an overview of City of Cordova policies regarding the submission of correspondence 
to the City Clerk’s office for distribution to City Council. These policies are general in nature and do not 
preempt the application of relevant laws to correspondence distribution. To the extent you have questions 
regarding the distribution of specific correspondence, please contact the City Clerk’s office. 

What gets published in Council packets as Correspondence? 

• Letters, emails, cards, or other written or electronic mail addressed to City Council, any individual
member of City Council or the Mayor, regardless of whether or not the sender has requested inclusion of
the correspondence in a City Council packet.

• Letters, emails, cards, or other written or electronic mail written by the Mayor, individual City Council
members in their capacity as elected officials, or the Council as a body

• Letters, emails, cards, or other written or electronic mail by agencies/entities that are pertinent to
Council and the citizens of Cordova (e.g. population determination, full value determination, open
comment periods for projects/leases in and around Cordova, etc.)

• Only correspondence received by the Clerk’s Office on or before noon on the Wednesday before a regular
Council meeting is eligible for inclusion in the packet for that meeting. Correspondence eligible for
inclusion received after that date and time will be included in the next regularly scheduled Council
meeting packet. (See CMC 3.12.035).

What does not get published in Council packets as Correspondence? 

• Letters, emails, cards, or other written or electronic mail that are disparaging to individuals or entities
• Letters, emails, cards, or other written or electronic mail that have been sent anonymously
• Letters, emails, cards, or other written or electronic mail that contain confidential information or

information that would warrant a constitutional violation of privacy or could potentially violate an
individual’s or an entity’s constitutional rights.

More information about items not subject to publication: 

• Correspondence that is not subject to publication in a Council packet will, however, be forwarded to the
Mayor and City Council members with notification that the communication will not be included in the
Council packet and the reasons for the exclusion.

• The City will attempt to contact the writer of the correspondence to inform them that the City has
determined not to publish what they have sent. Notifications will be sent to the return address on the
communication if one has been provided. (the best way to ensure the City is able to reach the writer is if
the correspondence has been emailed through the City Clerk cityclerk@cityofcordova.net)

• A person who submits a communication that is not subject to publication in a Council packet, may still
attend a meeting and read the communication during audience comments (if it is about an agenda item)
or during audience participation, if it is not about an agenda item. Oral comments during a Council
meeting will not be monitored or limited for content unless the comments made incite or promote
violence against a person or entity. The City is not responsible or liable for the comments, thoughts,
and/or opinions expressed by individuals during the public comment period at a Council meeting.

Suggestions concerning correspondence: 

• Correspondence intended for all Council members should be emailed to the City Clerk at
cityclerk@cityofcordova.net, hand-delivered or sent via U.S. mail to the Clerk’s office. Correspondence
should be clearly addressed to “Cordova City Council.” Unless clearly stated otherwise, the City Clerk will
presume that all correspondence addressed to City Council is intended for inclusion in the packet.

11

mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net


12



STATE OF ALASKA 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
DIVISION OF MINING, LAND AND WATER 

DRAFT PRINCE WILLIAM SOUND AREA PLAN AMENDMENT 
SC-88-004A06 

Management Unit 27: Cordova, Subunit 27G 

related to the 
Brandy Rose Griffith Noncompetitive Preference Right Sale – ADL 68214 

Native Village of Eyak Competitive Tidelands Lease – ADL 28205 
Pirtle, Inc. Noncompetitive Tidelands Lease – ADL 214997 

The Commissioner of the State of Alaska, Department of Natural Resources (DNR) finds that 
the following amendment to the Prince William Sound Area Plan, described more fully in the 
Attachment, meets the requirements of AS 38.04.065 Land Use Planning and Classification and 
11 AAC 55.010-030 Land Planning and Classification for land use plans and hereby adopts the 
amendment. The Department of Natural Resources will manage state lands within the area of 
the revision consistent with this designation and management intent. 

• Designation: The amendment will create Subunit 27G, a new subunit encompassing only
the subject parcels identified in the cases serialized as ADL 68214, ADL 28205, and
ADL 214997, adding approximately 0.374 acres, 4.37 acres, and 0.440 acres,
respectively, to Subunit 27G. The designation of Subunit 27G will be Settlement.

• Management Intent: Land offerings are an appropriate surface use in Subunit 27G.
There will be no changes to the management intent and guidelines for the remainder of
land within Unit 27.

John Boyle, Commissioner 
Department of Natural Resources 

Date 

13



ATTACHMENT 

to the 
DRAFT PRINCE WILLIAM SOUND AREA PLAN AMENDMENT 

SC-88-004A06 

Management Unit 27: Cordova, Subunit 27G 

related to the 
Brandy Rose Griffith Noncompetitive Preference Right Sale – ADL 68214 

Native Village of Eyak Competitive Tidelands Lease – ADL 28205 
Pirtle, Inc. Noncompetitive Tidelands Lease – ADL 214997 

Location and property description of new Subunit 27G: Located within DNR’s Southcentral 
Region, the subject parcel ADL 68214 is further described as that portion of ATS 786, 
Protracted Sec. 32, Township 15 South, Range 3 West, Copper River Meridian, Recorded in the 
Cordova Recording District on December 9, 1994, as plat No. 94-5, containing 0.374 acres, 
more or less. Also located within DNR’s Southcentral Region, the leasehold ADL 28205 is 
further described as Lot 26 of U.S. Survey No. 3601, Alaska, containing 0.12 acres, more or 
less, according to the survey plat accepted by the United States Department of the Interior, 
Bureau of Land Management in Washington, D.C. on March 15, 1960, and Tracts A, B, and C of 
Alaska Tidelands Survey No. 603, containing 4.25 acres, more or less, according to the survey 
plat filed in the Cordova Recording District on December 30, 1980, as Plat No. 80-5. 
Aggregating 4.37 acres, more or less. Leasehold ADL 214997 is also located within DNR’s 
Southcentral Region and is further described as Alaska Tidelands Survey No. 890, containing 
0.440 acres, more or less, according to the survey plat recorded in the Cordova Recording 
District on December 9, 1994, as plat 94-4. The area will create Subunit 27G in the Prince 
William Sound Area Plan (PWSAP). 

Authority: The authority to revise plans derives from AS 38.04.065(b) Land Use Planning and 
Classification. 11 AAC 55.030(f) Land Use Plan defines when a revision constitutes a plan 
amendment.  

Current Plan: The subject parcels ADL 68214 and ADL 214997 are currently unclassified while 
ADL 28205 contains lands that are unclassified as well as classified as Settlement Land. All 
three parcels are located within the area known as Management Unit 27 within the PWSAP. The 
two parcels were not classified when the area plan was originally adopted in 1988 and amended 
in 2007. Land within Unit 27 includes state-owned and state-selected land near the City of 
Cordova as well as state tidelands of Orca Inlet. 

Proposed Plan Amendment: Create new Subunit 27G. Subunit 27G will be designated 
Settlement with management intent stating that land offerings are an appropriate surface use in 
the subunit. There will be no changes to designations, management intent, and guidelines for 
the remainder of land within Unit 27.  

Explanation: The Prince William Sound Area Plan was adopted in 1988 and amended in April 
2007. The subject parcels were not classified when the original area plan was adopted. This 
new subunit will encompass the subject parcels only. Beyond the conveyance of the 0.374-acre 

14



Attachment to the Prince William Sound Area Plan Amendment 
Management Unit 27, Subunit 27G 
related to a Proposed Noncompetitive Sale to Preference Right Applicant ADL 68214 and leaseholds 
ADL 28205 and ADL 214997 
Page 2 of 2 

parcel and the 4.37-acre lease and 0.440-acre lease, minimal viable land could be used for 
settlement purposes.  

Land within the new subunit is appropriate for settlement due to consistency with current and 
adjacent uses. Management intent is for disposal supporting private interests that are 
compatible with adjacent uses. Multiple use, factors affecting the area, resource inventory, 
present and potential land uses, and compatible classifications have been considered.  

A goal of the PWSAP areawide land management policies for Settlement includes making 
suitable public land available to present and future Alaskans for private settlement purposes. 
Isolated parcels of State land in or near existing communities will be offered for settlement 
unless it is appropriate as a site for a school, gravel pit, road, park, sewer treatment plant, or 
other public facility. The subject parcel ADL 68214 has been a residential leasehold since 1975, 
the subject parcel ADL 28205 has been a leasehold and used as a marina for boat and fishing 
gear storage since 1965, and subject parcel ADL 214997 has been a tidelands lease since 
1982. All parcels are adjacent to other private settlement parcels and leaseholds. The PWSAP 
states that there are a few small parcels of state land surrounded by private land near the 
developed areas of Valdez, Whittier, and Cordova. These small parcels may be offered for sale 
if compatible with adjacent land uses. These small plots are not part of the areas designated for 
Settlement in the PWSAP. 

Sale of the subject parcel ADL 68214 supports the management goals of the PWSAP by 
providing an opportunity for private ownership of a long-term leasehold currently owned by the 
state. The parcel ADL 68214 is appropriate for offering as provided in the Preliminary Decision 
dated July 17, 2025. 

Assessment:  The following alternatives are being considered: 
1. (Preferred) Amend the Prince William Sound Area Plan as described above to create

Subunit 27G encompassing the subject parcels. The new subunit will be designated
Settlement. Amending the plan is the preferred alternative as it will allow the
noncompetitive sale of state land to the private sector, generate revenue for the State,
and mitigate costs related to the management of leased lands.

2. (Status Quo) Do not amend the Prince William Sound Area Plan. This alternative is not
preferred as it would disallow the offering of the subject parcels.

Requirements of AS 38.04.065(b): The factors identified in this section of statute have been 
considered, and the proposed action is consistent with that portion of the statute. 

15



STATE OF ALASKA 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
DIVISION OF MINING, LAND AND WATER 

PRELIMINARY DECISION 
ADL 68214 

Proposed Noncompetitive Sale to Preference Right Applicant 
 AS 38.05.035(e), AS 38.05.102 

RELATED ACTIONS: 
Proposed Amendment to the Prince William Sound Area Plan – AS 38.04.065 

Proposed Land Classification Order – AS 38.04.065 and AS 38.05.300 
Proposed Mineral Order (Closing) – AS 38.05.185 and AS 38.05.300 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ENDS 3:00 PM, THURSDAY, AUGUST 21, 2025 

I. Proposed Action
Preliminary Decision: Approval of Noncompetitive Preference Right Parcel Sale ADL 68214
Attachment A: Vicinity Map
Attachment B: Public Notice

The public is invited to comment on the proposed related actions: 
Draft Amendment to the Prince William Sound Area Plan SC-88-004A06 
Draft Land Classification Order CL SC-88-004A06 
Draft Mineral Order (Closing) MO 1284 

Primary Proposed Action, Noncompetitive Sale: The State of Alaska (State), Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR), Division of Mining, Land and Water (DMLW), Land Conveyance 
Section (LCS) has received an application from Brandy Rose Griffith to purchase a parcel of 
state-owned land pursuant to Alaska Statute (AS) 38.05.102 Lessee Preference. The proposed 
decision will allow the parcel to be sold through a noncompetitive sale to the applicant. The 
leasehold is located along Prince William Marina Road, approximately two miles southwest of 
Cordova. The subject parcel is within Section 32, Township 15 South, Range 3 West, Copper 
River Meridian, containing 0.374 acres, more or less. 

The subject parcel being considered for conveyance consists of uplifted tidelands that were 
created as a result of an avulsive event caused by the Great Alaska earthquake that occurred 
on March 27,1964. The land is now considered uplands and is appropriate for conveyance out 
of State ownership. See Attachment A: Vicinity Map for a depiction of the subject parcel.  

AS 38.05.102 Lessee Preference allows the granting of a preference right purchase or lease to 
those holding leases authorized under AS 38.05.070-.105 Alaska Land Act and who are 
currently in good standing. A 1981 amendment to AS 38.05.070 Generally made this section 
inapplicable to short-term leases. 

16



Preliminary Decision 
AS 38.05.102 Preference Right – ADL 68214 
Page 2 of 14 

Proposed Related Actions: The related actions will be developed separately; however, public 
notice is being conducted concurrently. 

Area Plan Amendment: State land sold under AS 38.05.102 Lessee Preference must 
have a Settlement classification. DNR proposes to amend the Prince William Sound 
Area Plan (PWSAP, adopted 1988 and amended April 3, 2007) to classify approximately 
0.374 acres within Unit 27G as Settlement. Refer to subsection e, Planning, 
Classification, and Mineral Orders of Section V. Description of this document for more 
information on this proposed related action. 

Land Classification Order: In relation to the Area Plan Amendment, DNR proposes to 
classify the project area within Unit 27G, in a Land Classification Order, to Settlement 
Land. Refer to subsection e, Planning, Classification, and Mineral Orders of Section V. 
Description of this document for more information on this proposed related action. 

Mineral Order (Closing): DNR proposes to close the parcel to new mineral entry. No 
mineral claims or mining activity have been identified within the project area. Refer to 
subsection e, Planning, Classification, and Mineral Orders of Section V. Description of 
this document for more information on this proposed related action. 

These related actions will be developed separately. However, approval of the proposed 
actions is dependent upon one another in that one action will not proceed without 
approval of all actions. 

Public Notice of Proposal: In accordance with AS 38.05.945 Notice, during a period of at least 
30 consecutive days, the public will have the opportunity to submit written comment on this 
proposal. Public notice for all actions will be conducted concurrently and will include the 
Preliminary Decision (PD) for noncompetitive sale (ADL 68214), draft Area Plan Amendment 
SC-88-004A06, draft Land Classification Order CL SC-88-004A06, and draft Mineral Order 
1284. 

See Section VII. Submittal of Public Comments and Attachment B: Public Notice for details 
on how to submit a comment for consideration. If, after consideration of timely, written 
comments, LCS moves forward with the proposal, a Final Finding and Decision (FFD) will be 
issued.  

II. Authority
DNR has the authority under AS 38.05.102 Lessee Preference to sell state-owned land if, on
preparation and issuance of a written finding, it is determined to be in the best interest of the
State, as required by AS 38.05.035(e) Powers and Duties of the Director. Article VIII, Section 1, of
the Constitution of the State of Alaska states, "It is the policy of the State to encourage the
settlement of its land and the development of its resources by making them available for
maximum use consistent with the public interest.” The authority to execute this decision has been
redelegated to the Section Chief of the DMLW Land Conveyance Section.

For related actions, AS 38.04.065 Land Use Planning and Classification, AS 38.05.300 
Classification of Land, and AS 38.05.185 Generally allow for amendments and special exceptions 
to area plans, land classifications, and mineral orders. 

17



Preliminary Decision 
AS 38.05.102 Preference Right – ADL 68214 
Page 3 of 14 

III. Administrative Record
The case file for Alaska Division of Lands (ADL) 68214 constitutes the administrative record for
this proposed action. Also incorporated by reference are:

• Prince William Sound Area Plan (PWSAP, adopted 1988 and amended April 3, 2007),
and associated land classification files;

• State of Alaska, 2004 Informal Opinion Attorney General (January 21, 2004). Application
of Public Trust Doctrine to avulsed lands;

• Update on the Status of Subsistence Uses in Exxon Valdez Oil Spill Area Communities,
2014, June 2016. Alaska Department of Fish and Game, Division of Subsistence,
Technical Paper No. 412;

• Memorandum from DMLW Survey Section to LCS Regarding the Extent of 1964
Earthquake Uplift in 3 Mile Bay near Cordova, February 2019 (Uplift Determination); and

• DNR case files: Alaska Tideland Survey No. 786.

IV. Scope of the Proposal
The scope of this proposal, under the statutes described in the preceding Section II. Authority
is limited and specific to determining the following: (1) if the applicant and subject parcel
themselves qualify, (2) if it is in the State’s best interest to sell the subject parcel, and (3) if it is
in the State’s best interest to sell the subject parcel to the applicant. The scope of this decision
does not include the control of post-patent use and LCS does not intend to impose deed
restrictions for this purpose. Restrictions regarding land use will be handled by the local zoning
authority, if any.

The proposed related actions will be issued concurrently with the FFD. These actions are 
described in more detail in the Planning, Classification, and Mineral Order Subsection (V)(e) of 
this document. 

V. Description
a. Location: The subject parcel is located within DNR’s Southcentral Region along Prince

William Marina Road, approximately two miles southwest of Cordova in the Unorganized
Borough, within Section 32, Township 15 South, Range 3 West, Copper River Meridian.
See Attachment A: Vicinity Map for additional information.

USGS Map Coverage: Cordova C-5 
Platting Authority: City of Cordova  
Regional Corporation: Chugach Alaska Corporation 
Federally Recognized Tribe: Native Village of Eyak 
Village Corporation: The Eyak Corporation 
ANCSA Non-Profit: Chugachmiut 

b. Legal Description: Alaska Tidelands Survey No. 786, containing 0.374 acres, more or
less, according to the survey plat recorded in the Cordova Recording District on
December 9, 1994, as Plat No. 94-5.

c. Title: Information from Title Report No. 23222, dated April 11, 2025, indicated the State
of Alaska holds fee title to the uplifted tide and submerged lands of ATS 786 through the
Statehood Act and the Submerged Lands Act of 1953. A third-party interest was
identified in the Title Report as Grant of Access Easement, dated 8/31/2009, from Prince

18



Preliminary Decision 
AS 38.05.102 Preference Right – ADL 68214 
Page 4 of 14 

William Marina, Inc., to Alaska Tideland Survey No. 786, recorded on Doc. No. 2009-
000335-0. This third-party interest is not expected to impact the proposed action. 

State Reservation of Title: 

Retention of and Access to Mineral Estate: In accordance with Section 6 (i) of the 
Alaska Statehood Act and AS 38.05.125 Reservation, the State retains 
ownership of all oil, gas, coal, ore, minerals, fissionable material, geothermal 
resources, and fossils that may be in or upon the land that it sells. This retention 
is for all minerals, including both locatable minerals (such as gold, copper, silver, 
etc.) and leasable minerals (such as oil, gas, coal, etc.). 

The State and its successors reserve the right to enter onto the land for the 
purposes of exploring for, developing, and producing these reserved mineral 
resources. Access reserved to these retained interests is superior to any and all 
land uses. The State may also lease these retained interests to mineral 
developers or allow mining locations to be staked. However, AS 38.05.130 
Damages and Posting of Bond also provides that the landowner will be 
compensated for damages resulting from mineral exploration and development. 

Navigable Waters: Per AS 38.05.126(b) Navigable and Public Waters, “…the 
State has full power and control of all of the navigable or public water of the 
State, both meandered and unmeandered, and the State holds and controls all 
navigable or public water in trust for the use of the people of the State.” This trust 
is in accordance with the principles of the Public Trust Doctrine, which are 
included in Article VIII, Section 14 of the Constitution of the State of Alaska and 
protected in the United States Constitution. It is vested in the title to this land, is 
not transferable, and the State’s title to submerged lands under navigable waters 
cannot be relinquished by a transfer of the property. In holding with this concept, 
navigability determinations are made, and access will be reserved per 
AS 38.05.127 Access To and Along Public and Navigable Water. For more 
information, see Access, including Access To and Along Public or Navigable 
Water subsection of this document. 

The Bureau of Land Management has determined that all tidal waters from three 
geographical miles seaward of the coastline to Mean High Water are considered 
navigable under the Submerged Lands Act of 1953. 

Native Interest: The subject parcel is within the boundaries of the Chugach 
Alaska Corporation regional corporation and federally recognized tribe, Native 
Village of Eyak. There are no Native interests identified with this parcel.  

Other Conflicts or Pending Interest: None. 

d. Background:
The State of Alaska holds fee title to the tide and submerged lands of ATS 786 under the
Alaska Statehood Act and the Submerged Lands Act of 1953.

19



Preliminary Decision 
AS 38.05.102 Preference Right – ADL 68214 
Page 5 of 14 

The State issued a 55-year lease for ADL 68214 on November 6, 1975, to Al L. 
Weathers. The lease was assigned from Al L. Weathers to George W. Weeks and 
Susan Elaine Weeks on November 28, 1975. On February 9, 1976, the lease was 
assigned from George W. Weeks and Susan E. Weeks to the State of Alaska, Veterans 
Affairs. A Tideland Assignment of Lease was completed on February 6, 1985, from 
George W. Weeks and Susan E. Weeks to Rose Weathers. Finally, Assignment No. 3 to 
Tideland Lease, issued on March 11, 2010, assigned the lease from Rose Weathers, via 
a Power of Attorney given to Kerin Kramer, to Brandy Griffith. On February 4, 2021, 
Brandy Rose Griffith applied to purchase the leasehold, ADL 68214, noncompetitively 
through statutory authority AS 38.05.102 Lessee Preference. 

The leasehold is a residential lease on avulsed tidelands, now considered uplands. Field 
inspections were completed in 2008, 2010, 2012, 2014, 2016, and 2024. During the 
2016 inspection, it was noted that the house and garage that were previously observed 
on the parcel had been removed. This 2016 field inspection report stated, “the site is 
basically a construction site…”. Photos were taken to document the stated condition of 
the leasehold. The parcel did not pass inspection at that time. Correspondence with the 
lessee via email with attached photos on 7/26/2016 showed that much of the parcel had 
been cleaned up and was then considered in compliance with the stipulations of the 
lease. During the last inspection in May 2024, a small house was located on the subject 
parcel; however, the lessee was not living in it at the time due to a non-functioning septic 
system. The subject parcel contained boat trailers, boats, an old dump truck, and various 
types of debris (e.g., scrap wood, metal, tires, etc.). The leasehold did not pass the May 
2024 inspection. The Field Inspection Report from the May 2024 inspection stated that 
“debris from the previous inspection, recommended for immediate removal in the 2016 
Field Inspection, remains on-site.” The lessee was asked “to provide photographic 
evidence of site cleanup and debris removal by November 13, 2024.” The lessee quickly 
followed up and sent in photos of the cleaned-up parcel on July 22, 2024. The leasehold 
was then considered in good standing, thus allowing the preference right application to 
move forward.  

Legal access to the leasehold is via Grant of Right-of-Way Easement recorded on 
August 23, 1974, in Book 40, Page 313, Cordova Recording District, as Document No. 
1974-000618-0, and by the Re-Subdivision TR. B, Lot 3 USS 2610, recorded on March 
16, 1990, Cordova Recording District as Plat No. 90-2, and by Grant of Access 
Easement recorded on September 16, 2009, Cordova Recording District, as Document 
No. 2009-000335-0, and by ATS No. 603, filed on December 30, 1980, Cordova 
Recording District as Plat No. 80-5. 

On March 27, 1964, a magnitude 9.2 earthquake struck the region. Portions of the 
Cordova area landscape experienced an uplift of six feet or more because of the 
earthquake. A February 2019 Memorandum from the DMLW Survey Section to LCS 
Regarding the Extent of the 1964 Earthquake Uplift in 3 Mile Bay near Cordova 
determined that the leasehold is now uplands. Tidal waters do not influence the 
leasehold. Per a 2004 informal Attorney General opinion, uplifted tidelands are 
conveyable as uplands. 

As of the time of this PD, there are no liens associated with the leasehold. 

20



Preliminary Decision 
AS 38.05.102 Preference Right – ADL 68214 
Page 6 of 14 

e. Planning, Classification, and Mineral Orders:
1. Planning: The subject parcel is located within PWSAP (adopted 1988 and amended

April 3, 2007), Management Unit 27 – City of Cordova. The parcel is currently
unclassified and will need to be classified as Settlement in order to be conveyed.

Area Plan Amendment: The subject parcel was not included within the 
classification of Management Unit 27 of the PWSAP. The parcel was surveyed 
as an Alaska Tidelands Survey prior to analysis of earthquake uplift caused by 
the 1964 earthquake. The parcel is now considered uplands as a result of the 
earthquake and can therefore be conveyed once it is classified as Settlement 
Land. An amendment to the PWSAP is necessary to address the subject parcel’s 
designation and management intent. Concurrent with this decision, an 
amendment to the PWSAP will create Subunit 27G, a new subunit with a 
designation of Settlement (Se) which converts to a classification of Settlement 
Land. This new subunit will encompass the 0.374-acre subject parcel. Land 
within the proposed Subunit 27G is appropriate for settlement due to consistency 
with adjacent uses. Multiple uses, factors affecting the area, resource inventory, 
present and potential land uses, and compatible classifications have been 
considered and are listed in AS 38.04.065(b) Land Use Planning and 
Classification. The plan amendment will receive public notice. If DNR approves 
the noncompetitive sale, the plan amendment will accompany the FFD. The 
approval of an area plan amendment is a separate action, occurring concurrently 
with the FFD. However, approval of the conveyance is dependent upon approval 
of the area plan amendment. 

A goal of the PWSAP areawide land management policies for Settlement includes 
making suitable public land available to present and future Alaskans for private 
settlement purposes. Isolated parcels of State land in or near existing communities 
will be offered for settlement unless it is appropriate as a site for a school, gravel pit, 
road, park, sewer treatment plant, or other public facility. The subject parcel is a 
long-term lease, originally issued on November 6, 1975, satisfying the necessary 
interest in the parcel to qualify for a preference right. The PWSAP states that small 
parcels in Cordova may be offered for sale if compatible with adjacent land uses.  

The sale of the subject parcel supports the management goals of the PWSAP by 
providing an opportunity for private ownership of state land for the purpose of 
economic and community development in the Cordova area.  

2. Land Classification Order: The subject parcel is unclassified in the PWSAP
(adopted in 1988 and amended in 2007) and in the associated Land Classification
Order (CL SC-88-004).

Land Classification Order: If approved by the Commissioner, the current land 
classification order will be amended to classify the subject parcel as Settlement 
Land. This action affects the entirety of Subunit 27G. If DMLW approves the 
noncompetitive sale, the land classification order will accompany the Final 
Finding and Decision. The approval of the land classification order is a separate 
action, occurring concurrently with the Final Finding and Decision. 

21



Preliminary Decision 
AS 38.05.102 Preference Right – ADL 68214 
Page 7 of 14 
 

  

3. Mineral Order: There is no current mineral activity located within the subject parcel. 
DNR proposes to close the parcel to new mineral entry in accordance with AS 
38.05.185 Generally and AS 38.05.300 Classification of Land for land disposals. 
The proposed mineral order, if approved, will close the subject parcel to new 
mineral entry. Mining is incompatible with current and proposed continued use of 
the land, and the subject parcel will be closed to mineral entry pursuant to AS 
38.05.300 Classification of Land. If DNR approves the preference right sale, the 
mineral order will accompany the FFD. The approval of the mineral order is a 
separate action, occurring concurrently with the FFD. 

 
Mineral orders which close an area to mineral entry, close the area to new 
exploration and development of locatable minerals (such as: gold, copper, platinum, 
etc.). Such mineral orders do not apply to leasable minerals (such as: oil, gas, coal, 
etc.), or exploration licenses for such, nor do they preclude reasonable surface 
access to these resources. However, AS 38.05.130 Damages and Posting of Bond 
stipulates that the land estate owner will be compensated for damages resulting 
from mineral exploration and development. 
 
Mining activity for locatable minerals would be incompatible with current and 
proposed land estate uses for land disposal. Allowing new mineral location within 
the boundary of the parcel encompassed by the decision could create conflict 
between land estate and mineral estate users. PWSAP subsurface management 
policy states that, in general, areas or parcels scheduled for disposal will be closed 
to mineral entry prior to sale to minimize potential conflict between land estate and 
mineral estate users. 

 
4. Local Planning: The project area is within the City of Cordova and is zoned 

“Unrestricted District.” It is in the Unorganized Borough.  
 

5. Flood Risk: Pursuant to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) map 
0200370043C, effective December 16, 2015, the area is at low risk of a flood 
hazard. The base flood elevation zone is “AE.” 

 
f. Traditional Use Findings:  

The subject parcel is located within the Unorganized Borough and a traditional use 
finding is required under AS 38.05.830 Land Disposal in the Unorganized Borough. 
Information obtained from the PWSAP, adjudicatory research, and agency review 
indicates that the surrounding area is currently used for settlement, public recreation, 
commercial fishing, and wild resource harvesting.  
 
The subject parcel is located near Cordova along Prince William Marina Road. LCS 
assumes that significant wild resource harvests take place in the broader surrounding 
area versus near the subject parcel. There are no anticipated significant changes to 
traditional uses of the land and resources of this area as a result of the proposed action.  
 
According to the Alaska Department of Fish & Game (ADF&G) Division of Subsistence, 
residents of Cordova report using areas in the vicinity of the subject parcel for the 
subsistence harvest of wild resources (ADF&G Technical Paper Number 412). Cordova 
residents reported contemporary subsistence search and harvest for salmon and non-

22



Preliminary Decision 
AS 38.05.102 Preference Right – ADL 68214 
Page 8 of 14 
 

  

salmon fish, large land mammals, and plants and berries near the city. Subsistence 
harvests were negatively impacted by the 1964 earthquake and the Exxon Valdez oil 
spill in 1989, though subsistence harvests continue today. Commercial fishing for 
salmon, marine fish, and marine invertebrates is considered by many, interviewed by 
ADF&G in the community, to be very important to the local economy. 
 
Additional information on traditional use is welcome during the public comment period. If 
this proposal is approved, LCS will address the information received in a subsequent 
FFD, if one is issued. See Section VII. Submittal of Public Comments of this 
document and Attachment B: Public Notice for details on how to submit comment. 

 
g. Access, including Access To and Along Public or Navigable Water:  

Public Access: Access to ADL 68214 is along Prince William Marina Road. via Grant of 
Access Easement, dated 8/31/2009, from Prince William Marina, Inc., to Alaska Tideland 
Survey No. 786, recorded on Doc. No. 2009-000335-0.  

 
Access To and Along Public or Navigable Waters: In accordance with AS 38.05.127 
Access To Navigable or Public Water, DNR will determine if a water body is navigable or 
public and establish easements or rights-of-way as necessary to ensure unobstructed 
access to and along the body of water. Regulations dictating the creation of easements 
or rights-of-way under this statute include: 11 AAC 51.035 Determination of Navigable 
and Public Water, 11 AAC 51.045 Easements To and Along Navigable and Public 
Water, and 11 AAC 53.450, Buffer Strips, Reserved Areas, and Public Easements. 
 
DNR has not identified any public, navigable, or anadromous water bodies within the 
subject parcel. If any such water bodies are discovered, the parcel will be subject to 
access reservations in accordance with AS 38.05.127 Access to Navigable or Public 
Water. 
 
Easements and Setbacks:  
• Utility easements; and 
• Additional reservations and/or restrictions required through the local platting 

authority. 
 

Where appropriate, reservations and restrictions will be depicted on the plat and 
described in plat notes. 

 
h. Reservation of Mineral Estate: In accordance with section 6(i) of the Alaska Statehood 

Act and AS 38.05.125 Reservation, the State, in this decision, reserves unto itself the 
mineral estate, including oil and gas, and the rights expressed in the reservation clause 
of the statute, that being the right to reasonable access to the surface for purposes of 
exploring for, developing and producing the reserved mineral resources. Exploration and 
development, if any, which could occur, would be consistent with AS 38.05.130 
Damages and Posting of Bond and other applicable statutes and regulations. 

 
i. Hazardous Materials and Potential Contaminants:  

There is no known contamination of, or hazardous materials on, the subject parcel. The 
applicant is expected to inspect the subject parcel to ascertain the quality and condition 
of the land. The State makes no representations and no warranties, expressed or 
implied, concerning the existence or absence of any hazardous substances, hazardous 

23



Preliminary Decision 
AS 38.05.102 Preference Right – ADL 68214 
Page 9 of 14 

wastes, contaminants, or pollutants on the land proposed for conveyance to the 
applicant. The State does not assume any liability for the removal of hazardous 
substances, hazardous wastes, contaminants, or pollutants, nor for the remediation of 
the site should such substances ever be identified. 

The applicant will be required to submit an affidavit acknowledging the condition and 
history of the site prior to purchase. This affidavit releases the State from liability for the 
removal of hazardous substances, hazardous wastes, contaminants, or pollutants and 
for the remediation of the site should such substances ever be identified. Brandy Griffith 
recognizes that the subject parcel is conveyed on an “as is” basis and in the condition of 
the conveyance.  

j. Survey: Preliminary Survey Determination #20225185, dated October 12, 2022,
determined the leased land to be surveyed. The subject parcel is surveyed as Alaska
Tidelands Survey No. 786, containing 0.374 acres, more or less, according to the survey
plat recorded in the Cordova Recording District on December 9, 1994, as plat No. 94-5.

k. Compensation/Appraisal: If the purchase is approved, the parcel will be sold at fair
market value as required by AS 38.05.840(a) Appraisal. At the appropriate time, LCS will
notify the applicant to begin the appraisal process and will provide a list of approved
appraisers. The DMLW Appraisal Section will provide appraisal instructions to an
approved appraiser. The applicant bears the cost of appraisal. The date fixed for sale
under AS 38.05.840(a) Appraisal and the valuation date of the appraisal will be set as
the date of inspection by the appraiser.

VI. DMLW and Agency Review
Information and comments received from multiple sections within DMLW prior to and during
agency review have been considered and included in the preparation of this PD. Agency review
was conducted between September 22, 2023, through October 12, 2023. Comments pertinent
to this proposed action received during agency review have been considered and addressed
below. Additional timely comments received during the Public Notice period will be considered
and addressed in a subsequent Final Finding and Decision, if one is issued.

DNR DMLW LCS received brief comments of non-objection from the following agencies: 
Alaska Department of Transportation & Public Facilities, DNR Division of Parks & 
Outdoor Recreation, DNR Division of Oil and Gas, Alaska Department of Fish & Game, 
Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation, DMLW Public Access Assertion and 
Defense, and DMLW Statewide Abatement of Impaired Land. 

DNR DMLW LCS Response: LCS appreciates your review of the proposal. 

DNR DMLW Resource Assessment & Development Section (RADS): RADS thanked 
DMLW for the opportunity to review and comment on the project. RADS stated that the 
subject parcel is currently unclassified in the Prince William Sound Area Plan (PWSAP); 
a parcel disposal will require an amendment to the PWSAP classifying the area as 
Settlement. RADS also stated that a mineral closing order will also need to be issued to 
close the parcel to new mineral entry. RADS has no objection to the proposed 
conveyance once the parcel is classified and the mineral closing order is issued. 

24



Preliminary Decision 
AS 38.05.102 Preference Right – ADL 68214 
Page 10 of 14 
 

  

DNR DMLW LCS Response: LCS appreciates the review of this proposed 
noncompetitive sale. Included in this decision are a draft Amendment to the 
PWSAP, a draft Land Classification Order, and a draft Mineral Order (Closing). 

 
The following agencies or groups were included in the agency review, but no comment was 
received: 

• DNR Division of Agriculture, DNR Division of Forestry & Fire Protection, DNR 
Division of Geological & Geophysical Surveys, DNR State Historic Preservation 
Office, and U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service. 

 
VII. Submittal of Public Comments  
See Attachment B: Public Notice for specific dates and conditions.  
 
Pursuant to AS 38.05.945 Notice, LCS is issuing public notice inviting comment on this 
Preliminary Decision, draft area plan amendment, draft land classification order, and draft 
mineral order. 
 
In accordance with AS 38.05.946(a) Hearings, a municipality or corporation entitled to receive 
notice under AS 38.05.945(c) Notice may hold a hearing within 30 days after receipt of the 
notice. If a hearing is held, the Commissioner (or representative) shall attend the hearing. The 
Commissioner has discretion whether or not to hold a public hearing. 
 
LCS will consider all timely, written comments received. If analysis of such comments indicates 
the need for significant changes to the PD, draft area plan amendment, draft land classification 
order, or draft mineral order, additional public notice for the affected lands will be given. 
Reducing the amount of land offered and making minor changes to any of the proposals will not 
be considered significant changes requiring additional public notice. 
 
If the proposals are approved and no significant change is required, the PD, draft area plan 
amendment, draft land classification order, or draft mineral order, including any deletions, minor 
changes, and a summary of comments and LCS responses will be issued as a subsequent 
FFD, PWSAP Amendment No. SC-88-004A06, Land Classification Order CL SC-88-004A06, 
and Mineral Order 1284 without further notice. All related actions will be developed separately. 
However, approval of any action is dependent upon one another. One action will not proceed 
without approval of all actions. 
 
Only persons from whom LCS receives timely, written comment during the identified comment 
period will be eligible to file a request for reconsideration of the FFD, PWSAP Amendment No 
SC-88-004A06, Land Classification Order CL SC-88-004A06, and Mineral Order 1284. Upon 
approval and issuance of a FFD, a copy of the decision will be made available online at 
https://dnr.alaska.gov/mlw/landsales/ and sent with an explanation of the appeal process to any 
party who provides timely written comment. 
 
DNR is prepared to accommodate individuals with disabilities by providing auxiliary aids, 
services, or special modifications in order to participate in this review. Individuals who may need 
such assistance should contact DNR’s Public Information Center. For more information refer to 
Attachment B: Public Notice. 

25

https://dnr.alaska.gov/mlw/landsales/


Preliminary Decision 
AS 38.05.102 Preference Right – ADL 68214 
Page 11 of 14 
 

  

 
DEADLINE TO SUBMIT WRITTEN COMMENT IS 

3:00 PM, THURSDAY, AUGUST 21, 2025 
 
VIII. Stipulations  
If approved for conveyance, the applicant will be required to comply with the following 
stipulations to complete the land sale: 

 
1. The lessee must remain in good standing with respect to the terms of the lease until the 

lease is relinquished. If the lessee is not in good standing at any time prior to the 
relinquishment of the lease, the purchase process will be halted until the lessee regains 
good standing as determined by DMLW.  

 
2. Once the FFD is signed and the appeal period is over without receiving an appeal, LCS will 

issue notice to proceed to appraisal. The parcel is already surveyed so the applicant may 
proceed to appraisal. Within two years from the date of the notice to proceed to appraisal, 
the applicant must hire an appraiser from DNR’s Approved Appraiser list, the appraiser must 
apply for appraisal instructions issued by DMLW, and then must submit a completed fair 
market value appraisal in accordance with the appraisal instructions. DMLW must approve 
the appraisal. Appraisal costs shall be borne by the applicant. 
 

3. Upon approval of the appraisal, a notice to proceed to purchase will be issued to the 
applicant. Within the time period specified in the notice, the applicant must submit the 
following to LCS: 
 
o A signed and notarized affidavit acknowledging the condition of the land and releasing 

the State from related liability; 
o A completed and signed Declaration of Intent form; 
o A signed and notarized Relinquishment of Land Lease form;  
o A completed Veteran’s Land Discount form (if eligible); and 
o Payoff amount plus patent application and recordation fees OR minimum 5% of the 

purchase price as a deposit plus land sales contract application and recordation fees. 
Fees are established under 11 AAC 05.100 Land Disposals and 11 AAC 05.200 
Recorder’s Office and are subject to change. Some fees have been reduced by 
Director’s Order Number 3. 
 

4. Prior to the completion of the purchase and issuance of a state conveyance document, the 
applicant must remain in good standing with respect to all terms of the Contract for the Sale 
of Real Property throughout its term, if such a contract is issued. The applicant must also 
remain in compliance with all applicable state and local ordinances and regulations, 
including all applicable taxes. Failure to do so may result in termination of the Contract for 
the Sale of Real Property. 

 
Special Note: The applicant must complete steps 1-4 above by May 5, 2030, in order to ensure 
the applicant has a signed land sales contract before the lease expires on November 5, 2030. 
Failure to do this will result in the loss of the applicant’s right to purchase this parcel of land or 
may require the applicant to enter into a new lease agreement and incur associated costs. 
 

26



Preliminary Decision 
AS 38.05.102 Preference Right – ADL 68214 
Page 12 of 14 

If extenuating circumstances delay any of the stipulations listed above, the applicant is 
responsible for notifying LCS and receiving approval from LCS for the delay with new 
timeframes for completion to be given. Failure to do this could result in the closure of the 
purchase application. The purchase cannot be completed until all the above stipulations have 
been satisfied. 

IX. Discussion and Alternatives
The original lease was issued in 1975 for a 55-year term under the authority of AS 38.05 Alaska
Land Act as amended, as stated on the lease agreement. DMLW finds that the issuance
authority, in addition to an Uplift Determination issued by the DMLW Survey Section in 2019,
qualifies the lease for preference right claim under AS 38.05.102 Lessee Preference.

The preference right applicant and current leaseholder of the parcel is in good standing with the 
terms of the lease as of the date of this document. Title Report No. 23222 shows no third-party 
interests or liens that would conflict with a conveyance of the parcel to the applicant. Therefore, 
the applicant qualifies under AS 38.05.102 Lessee Preference for a preference right claim. 

The following alternatives were considered: 

Alternative1: Sell 
Approve the proposed conveyance of the approximately 0.374-acre subject parcel to the 
applicant in accordance with AS 38.05.102 Lessee Preference.  

Alternative 2: Lease  
Continue with a lease agreement. 

Alternative 3: Retain 
DNR will take no action and retain the subject parcel. 

Alternative 1 will provide settlement land to the private sector, generate revenue for the State, 
mitigate costs related to the management of leased lands, and is compatible with area plan 
management intent. The sale of the parcel allows the applicant’s improvements to remain in situ 
and provides the applicant assurances required for future planning and passing property to 
heirs. Therefore, it is in the best interest of the State to sell the parcel as proposed in this 
decision.  

Article VIII, Section 1 of the Alaska Constitution states, “it is the policy of the State to encourage 
the settlement of its land and the development of its resources by making them available for 
maximum use consistent with the public interest.” Alternative 1 provides a method for DNR to 
meet the obligations laid out in the Constitution and statute and supports DNR’s goal of 
providing lands for private settlement and supporting economic growth throughout Alaska. This 
is the preferred alternative. 

Under Alternative 2, DNR will continue managing a lease issued to the applicant. The lessee 
receives control of the leasehold for a given period. There is a possibility DMLW will incur future 
management costs related to ensuring performance under the lease agreement and 
administrative costs related to lease administration. In addition, upon lease expiration or 
relinquishment, the applicant is required to submit and execute a reclamation plan to rehabilitate 
the land within the leasehold. Due to the nature of the activities and existing improvements, 

27



Preliminary Decision 
AS 38.05.102 Preference Right – ADL 68214 
Page 13 of 14 

reclamation may be difficult. This is not in the best interest of the State. This alternative is not 
preferred. 

Under Alternative 3, the State would need to expend resources managing the land while 
forgoing the income that could have been generated by a sale or lease. If the State chooses to 
neither sell nor lease the land to the current leaseholder, the lessee will be required to remove 
existing infrastructure from the land that was approved under a lease approved by the State and 
restore the land to its original condition. The applicant may lose improvements if they are 
immobile, causing detriment to the applicant. Retaining the subject parcel in state ownership is 
not in the best interest of the State. This alternative is not preferred. 

For the reasons outlined above, Alternative 1 is the preferred alternative. The sale of the subject 
parcel is beneficial to both the State, and to the applicant. It provides maximum use for the 
public benefit by providing land for private settlement, does not disturb or curtail nearby state 
land uses, and supports the long-term growth and development of the nearby community. 

Recommendation follows. 

28



Preliminary Decision 
AS 38.05.102 Preference Right – ADL 68214 
Page 14 of 14 

X. Recommendation and Preliminary Decision
This Preliminary Decision for the proposed disposal of State lands, PWSAP Amendment and
associated Land Classification Order CL SC-88-004A06, and Mineral Order 1284 described
throughout this document are consistent with the overall management intent for state-owned
lands. Alternative 1 is the preferred alternative because it is the maximum best use of state
land, addresses a land claim under preference right statutes, and helps meet the mission of the
land sales program.

This is a Preliminary Decision, and analysis of subsequent public review may result in changes 
to the preferred alternative of the proposed disposal of state lands, PWSAP Amendment and 
associated Land Classification Order CL SC-88-004A06, and Mineral Order 1284. If the 
decision is approved, PWSAP Amendment and associated Land Classification Order CL SC-88-
004A06, and Mineral Order 1284 will accompany and precede any Final Finding and Decision 
issued. A Final Finding and Decision will address any significant issues or concerns presented 
during the public review process. If the applicant is unable to complete the stipulations, DMLW 
may decide to close this purchase application or require extension or renewal of the lease to 
allow additional time to complete the purchase process.   

The PD described above, as represented by the preferred alternative, has been reviewed and 
considered. I find that the recommended action may be in the best interest of the State and that 
it is hereby approved to proceed to public notice.  

__________________________________ ___________________ 
Prepared by: Melinda Reynolds Date of Signature 
Natural Resource Specialist 
Land Conveyance Section 
Division of Mining, Land and Water 
Department of Natural Resources 
State of Alaska 

__________________________________ ___________________ 
Approved by: Hannah Uher-Koch   Date of Signature 
Section Chief  
Land Conveyance Section 
Division of Mining, Land and Water 
Department of Natural Resources 
State of Alaska 

7/17/2025

7/17/2025

29



30



STATE OF ALASKA  
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
DIVISION OF MINING, LAND AND WATER 

Attachment B: PUBLIC NOTICE 
Requesting Input for Proposed Noncompetitive Sale to 

Preference Right Applicant - ADL 68214 
AS 38.05.102 

COMMENT PERIOD ENDS 3:00 PM, THURSDAY, AUGUST 21, 2025 

The Alaska Department of Natural Resources (DNR), Division of Mining, Land and Water (DMLW), 
Land Conveyance Section (LCS) is conducting a public notice for a noncompetitive land sale 
located approximately two miles southwest of Cordova. The legal description for the parcel is 
Alaska Tidelands Survey No. 786, containing 0.374 acres, more or less, according to the survey 
plat recorded in the Cordova Recording District on December 9, 1994, as plat No. 94-5. 

To obtain the notice, Preliminary Decision (PD), or instructions on submitting comment, go to 
https://dnr.alaska.gov/mlw/landsales/ or https://aws.state.ak.us/OnlinePublicNotices/. For 
assistance in obtaining the documents by an alternative method, to request auxiliary aids, services, 
or special accommodations, contact DNR’s Public Information Centers on State work days, 
Monday through Friday, between 8:30 AM and 4:00 PM in Anchorage at (907) 269-8400 or 
Fairbanks at (907) 451-2705 or the Southeast Land Office in Juneau at (907) 465-3400 or TTY: 
711 for Alaska Relay or 1-800-770-8973 or go to https://dnr.alaska.gov/commis/pic/ for additional 
contact information.  Individuals who require special assistance must request assistance from the 
Public Information Center in Anchorage no later than 4:00 PM, Thursday, August 14, 2025. 

Pursuant to AS 38.05.945 Notice, the public is invited to submit comments on the Preliminary 
Decision. The deadline for public comment is 3:00 PM, THURSDAY, AUGUST 21, 2025. Only 
persons from whom DNR DMLW LCS receives timely, written comment during the identified 
comment period will be eligible to file an appeal of the Final Finding and Decision (FFD). Written 
comment may be received by fax, email, or postal mail. To submit comments or for direct inquiries, 
contact Melinda Reynolds by mail at 550 West 7th Ave, Suite 640, Anchorage, AK 99501 or by fax 
at (907) 269-8916 or by email at melinda.reynolds@alaska.gov. If you have questions, call Melinda 
Reynolds at (907) 269-5664. 

If no significant change is required, the PD, including any minor changes and a summary of 
comments and responses, will be issued as the FFD without further notice. A copy of the FFD will 
be sent to any persons who commented timely on the PD. 

DNR reserves the right to waive technical defects in this notice. 

31

https://dnr.alaska.gov/mlw/landsales/
https://aws.state.ak.us/OnlinePublicNotices/
https://dnr.alaska.gov/commis/pic/
mailto:melinda.reynolds@alaska.gov


601 First Street   PO Box 1210 Cordova, Alaska 99574  Telephone (907) 424-6200   Fax (907) 424-6000 

July 22, 2025 

Ryan Anderson, Commissioner 

Alaska Dept. of Public Transportation & Public Facilities 

2301 Peger Road 

Fairbanks AK 99709 

Dear Commissioner Anderson, 

In response to an invitation to comment, the City of Cordova is writing to comment on the 

proposed Winter 2025 - 2026 AMHS ferry schedule for Prince William Sound. 

I believe the Cordova School District has submitted its travel dates and events in the past, could 

these please be added to the “Community Events” listing that’s included in the public comment 

document?  And we request that these other events be added to the Community Events listing or 

modified in their current listing: 

• “Sobriety Celebration” should be listed as Native Village of Eyak Sobriety Celebration

• Cordova Christmas Bazaar, December 5 – 6, 2025

• Cordova High School Tip-off Tournament, January 16 – 17, 2026

Can the AMHS share some more information about the lay-up planned for the F/V Aurora?  

Initially we were told it would be an extra 30 days for a total of 12 weeks, now that the schedule 

is released the lay-up period is presented as 14 weeks long.  

Once again, for the fourth or fifth year in a row, Cordova is scheduled to go without ferry service for 

more than three months during a busy fall season when school sports and academic groups are traveling 

regularly, households are making post-fishing season trips for medical care and household shopping, and 

the Native Village of Eyak’s annual Sobriety Celebration (drawing several hundred participants) takes 

place.   

I didn’t note whether southwest communities were made to go without ferry service for months at a time 

in 2024, but I would like to hear back from the Department about why we are consistently made to bear 

this burden, and why the service outages aren’t rotated among other coastal Alaska communities?  We 

still have not received a response to this comment.  

Thank you for your consideration, 

Kristin Smith, Mayor 

City of Cordova 

mayor@cityofcordova.net 

32

mailto:mayor@cityofcordova.net


UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA 
Land Management 

Anchorage Office Fairbanks Office 
1835 Bragaw St. Ste. 490 www.alaska.edu/ualand 2025 Yukon Dr. Ste. 211 
Anchorage, Alaska 99508 ua-land@alaska.edu Fairbanks, Alaska 99775 

The University of Alaska Land Management Office (UALM) is seeking public comment on the 
attached development and disposal plan.  

Parties interested in commenting on this proposed disposal plan must submit written comments 
to UALM by fax at (907) 786-7733, by email at ua-land@alaska.edu, or at the address listed below 
no later than 5:00 P.M. on Friday, August 22, 2025, to be considered. 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
Cordova Subdivision 

33

http://www.alaska.edu/ualand
mailto:ua-land@alaska.edu
mailto:ua-land@alaska.edu


 

   
 UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA  
 Land Management  

Anchorage Office  Fairbanks Office 
1835 Bragaw St. Ste. 490 www.alaska.edu/ualand 2025 Yukon Dr. Ste. 211 
Anchorage, Alaska 99508 ua-land@alaska.edu Fairbanks, Alaska 99775 

 

 
Sections 29 & 32 within Township 15 S, Range 3 W, Copper River Meridian 

Cordova Recording District 
 

The University of Alaska (“University”) intends to subdivide an approximately 32-acre tract of 
land in Cordova. After the subdivision process is complete, the parcels will be offered for sale at 
or above fair market value. The University intends to offer parcels for sale competitively or over 
the counter.  
 
This public notice serves to notify the public of the University’s intent to subdivide and sell the 
indicated parcels of land. Additional public notice by outside agencies may be required during 
the subdivision process.   
 
This development and disposal plan is effective as long as the University owns the parcel. 
  

DEVELOPMENT AND DISPOSAL PLAN 

Cordova Subdivision  

34

http://www.alaska.edu/ualand
mailto:ua-land@alaska.edu


 

   
 UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA  
 Land Management  

Anchorage Office  Fairbanks Office 
1835 Bragaw St. Ste. 490 www.alaska.edu/ualand 2025 Yukon Dr. Ste. 211 
Anchorage, Alaska 99508 ua-land@alaska.edu Fairbanks, Alaska 99775 

 

PARCEL INFORMATION 

Parcel No.:   GU.CV.0004 (City of Cordova Parcel ID 02-082-700)  
 
Description:      Approximately 32.9 acres of vacant land located on Whiskey Ridge Road, 

within the UR, unrestricted district. Utilities are available directly adjacent 
to the parcel, and a six-inch water main and an eight-inch sewer main are 
located within Whiskey Ridge Drive and serve the neighboring subdivision.  

 
Legal Description:      Tract 1-A, Meadow View Subdivision, containing 32.9 acres, more or less, 

according to the survey plat recorded in the Cordova Recording District on 
September 19, 2022 as Plat No. 2022-11. 

 
 
 
Parcel No.:   GU.CV.0014  (City of Cordova Parcel ID 02-082-610) 
 
Description:      Approximately 1.3 acres of vacant land located adjacent to Tract 1-A of the 

proposed subdivision parcel, GU.CV.0004. 
 
Legal Description: Tract 2, Group B, of Alaska State Land Survey No. 73-35, Cordova Small 

Tracts, containing 1.276 acres, more or less, according to the survey plat 
filed in the Cordova Recording District on May 16, 1974 as Plat No. 74-291. 

 
  

35

http://www.alaska.edu/ualand
mailto:ua-land@alaska.edu


 

   
 UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA  
 Land Management  

Anchorage Office  Fairbanks Office 
1835 Bragaw St. Ste. 490 www.alaska.edu/ualand 2025 Yukon Dr. Ste. 211 
Anchorage, Alaska 99508 ua-land@alaska.edu Fairbanks, Alaska 99775 

 

 
Subdivision Concept Design 

 

36

http://www.alaska.edu/ualand
mailto:ua-land@alaska.edu


37



38



_ ft} {U! /c t} r/4t -j!m- (jfrr 
/4_/4 n1 �

I 
9M101'0'5; � <-51J f(}n--;

'" t
-1/V-VYh L(/VJ2 r'---f 

'f1; e O iJ,AL i J-6 15 

i' £� I,:
,,, �" ! 

1'1.-.,,,. 

39



AGENDA ITEM 12 
City Council Meeting Date: 8/6/25 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 

FROM: Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk 

DATE: 7/30/25 

ITEM:         Ordinance 1232 excepting ski hill from provisions of 6.12.030 

NEXT STEP:  Majority roll call vote on second reading 

   X   ORDINANCE RESOLUTION 
MOTION INFORMATION 

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:  Ordinance excepting Ski Hill from provisions of 6.12.030 same way we do for
special events at Cordova Center.

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP: Council adoption of Ordinance 1232 on second reading.

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: Salmon Jam at Ski Hill brings tourism dollars to Cordova and the event is run
mostly by volunteers this would be one less hoop to jump through for these volunteers.

IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: There have been times in the past when the request for Council
action has been sent in late and staff has scrambled to either amend a regular meeting agenda (as we did on
July 2, 2025) or last minute assemble enough Council members for a special meeting in order to approve the
beer garden at Ski Hill. The adoption of this ordinance would ensure this is an easier process for the volunteers
who run Salmon Jam as well as for city staff and city council.

V. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES: Council can adopt the ordinance or vote it down in order to keep
that piece of code in place and continue the process that requires council approval for the beer garden at Ski
Hill for Salmon Jam.

40



Ordinance 1232 Deleted language is stricken through and added language is bold and underlined 
Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE 1232 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, AMENDING CORDOVA 
MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 6.12.040–EXCEPTIONS, TO ALLOW THE CITY MANAGER TO 
AUTHORIZE USE PERMITS TO EXCEPT SPECIAL EVENTS HELD AT SKI HILL, FROM THE 

PROVISIONS OF 6.12.030–ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES-CONSUMPTION IN PUBLIC PLACES 

 WHEREAS, Ski Hill is the traditional location for the Copper River Salmon Jam music concerts held each 
summer in Cordova; and 

 WHEREAS, the consumption of alcoholic beverages, often at a beer garden, at this event is customary, 
expected by the sponsoring entity, and enhances the marketability of the Copper River Salmon Jam, ancillary 
events, and more generally of Cordova as a destination for tourists; and 

 WHEREAS, it has become impractical to have the City Council except Ski Hill by use permit from the 
provisions of 6.12.030 each year when this event is scheduled. 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Cordova, that: 

Section 1. Section 6.12.040 of the Cordova Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows: 

6.12.030 Alcoholic beverages—Consumption in public places. 
A. It is unlawful for any person to consume any alcoholic beverage on any public street, alley or highway within

the city limits or in or upon the grounds of any city building or property, except as permitted by ordinance,
use permit or regulation.

B. It is unlawful for any person to possess any open bottle, can, or other receptacle, containing any alcoholic
beverage on any public street, sidewalk or alley within the city limits or in or upon the grounds of any
municipal building or property, except as permitted by ordinance, use permit or regulation.

C. The city council is authorized to designate public areas and places within the city limits, in addition to those
specified in subsection A and B of this section, in which the consumption of alcoholic beverages or possession
of open alcoholic beverage containers is prohibited, and to cause signs to be posted in such areas or places
advising members of the public of the prohibition.

6.12.040 Exceptions. 
A. The city council is authorized by use permit to except any public street, alley, highway, city building or city

property from Section 6.12.030.
B. The city manager or his designee is authorized by use permit to except special events at the Cordova Center

and at Ski Hill from Section 6.12.030.

Section 2. This ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days after its passage and publication. This ordinance shall 
be enacted in accordance with Section 2.13 of the Charter of the City of Cordova, Alaska, within ten (10) days 
after its passage.  

1st reading: July 16, 2025, 2nd reading and public hearing: August 6, 2025 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS ____ DAY OF _______________ 2025. 

__________________________________ 
Kristin Smith, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
__________________________________
Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk 

41



CCCF for Ord 1233 
Page 1 of 2 

AGENDA ITEM 13 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 8/6/25 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 

FROM: Samantha Greenwood, City Manager 

DATE: 7/30/2025 

ITEM: Ordinance 1233 

ACTION:  Amend the Cordova Municipal Code section 4.16.050–residency requirement 

   X    Ordinance Motion 
    Resolution Information 

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE: To change ‘city limits’ to ‘greater Cordova area’ and to further clarify what it
means to reside in the ‘greater Cordova area’, in chapter 4.16 Appointments and Promotions, all within
Title 4 - Personnel.

II. BACKGROUND: The need to define reside stems from the desire to provide flexibility in scheduling,
principally for the police department. The police department has had a difficult time overall filling positions
and has not been able to fill the budgeted 4th officer position for 2024 or 2025. The majority of the
applicants, for the last year, who have applied are looking for two weeks on and two weeks off schedule.

This schedule is becoming the norm for many remote communities in Alaska. Currently, seven remote 
communities have implemented the schedule and filled multiple positions, making it difficult for the 
Cordova Police Department to compete. Currently, the police department for FY25 has budgeted a Chief, 
a Sergeant, and four officers. There are two vacant positions: the chief and an officer. Sergeant Hayden is 
also acting chief; one officer will be undergoing on-the-job training into the fall, and there have been 
officers on medical leave at various times throughout the summer. Most of the busy summer has been 
staffed with two officers on duty, requiring multiple consecutive long days. It is in the best interest of the 
city and the police officers to be able to compete with other municipal departments around the state by 
offering two weeks on and two weeks off schedule. 

While looking at this section of Code and initially only wanting to define reside more clearly, we also 
realized the need to change ‘city limits’ to ‘greater Cordova area’ based on the significant increase in 
development occurring in the Hartney Bay Subdivision and elsewhere around Cordova but outside of city 
limits. When City staff moves here from outside of Cordova, it is in the City’s best interest to give them 
every opportunity to find rental housing or to invest in the area by buying a home, without limiting them to 

42



CCCF for Ord 1233 
Page 2 of 2 

only rentals or homes that are inside city limits. That is also the case for any existing City employees who 
are ready to buy or build homes – it is important that we give them every opportunity to do so and to be 
able to remain employed with the City. 
  
III. RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approval of Ordinance 1233 
 
IV. FISCAL IMPACTS:  Providing the police department a competitive schedule will reduce OT, 
potential loss of employees due to burnout, and increase the overall productivity for the staff. 
 
V. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES: The staff has spent a lot of time looking into alternative 
schedules and what's being offered in other remote areas. We believe that this gives us a better opportunity 
to fill the vacant positions and sustain full staff.   

43



Deleted language is stricken through and added language is bold and underlined 
Ordinance 1233 
Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE 1233 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, AMENDING 
CORDOVA MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 4.16.050–RESIDENCY REQUIREMENT, TO 

REPLACE ‘CITY LIMITS’ WITH ‘GREATER CORDOVA AREA’ AND TO CLARIFY AND 
FURTHER DEFINE RESIDENCY 

 WHEREAS, there are subdivisions in the ‘greater Cordova area’ that are not within ‘City limits’ 
where many homes are being built, sold, and lived-in by Cordova community members; and 

 WHEREAS, it is likely that City employees may someday occupy such homes, and it is in the City’s 
best interest to allow such employees to do so while remaining employed by the City; and 

 WHEREAS, local governments around the State have adjusted to alternative work schedules in 
order to fill positions especially within certain departments; and 

 WHEREAS, some of the City of Cordova’s long-time vacant positions might be filled if the City 
adopted alternative work schedules, especially in public safety departments such as Fire and Police; and 

 WHEREAS, alternative work schedules such as 2 weeks on, 2 weeks off, are amenable to 
prospective public safety employees and refining the definition of residency would allow City of 
Cordova to employ individuals using alternative work schedules. 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Cordova, that: 

Section 1. Section 4.16.050 of the Cordova Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows: 

4.16.050 - Residency requirement. 
Officers and employees of the city shall reside in the greater Cordova area city limits within six months 
from the date of hire or appointment. For purposes of this section, city limits is synonymous with 
greater Cordova area. For purposes of this section, an employee “resides in the greater Cordova 
area” so long as they do so during their assigned work schedule and while performing work for 
the City. This provision does not prevent an employee from residing outside the City when not 
performing work for the City.  

Section 2. This ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days after its passage and publication. This 
ordinance shall be enacted in accordance with Section 2.13 of the Charter of the City of Cordova, Alaska, 
within ten (10) days after its passage.  

1st reading: July 16, 2025 , 2nd reading and public hearing: August 6, 2025 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS ____ DAY OF _______________ 2025. 

__________________________________ 
Kristin Smith, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
__________________________________ 
Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk 

44



Resolution 08-25-21- Adoption of City of Cordova Comprehensive Trails Plan 2025 Page 1 of 1 

AGENDA ITEM 14 
City Council Meeting Date: 8/06/2025 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
______________________________________________________________________________________  

FROM: Samantha Hagerthy-Schneider, Parks and Recreation Director  
DATE: 7/30/2025
ITEM: Adoption of City of Cordova Comprehensive Trails Plan 2025
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

ORDINANCE       X _ RESOLUTION 
    MOTION            _ INFORMATION 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

I. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The Cordova Comprehensive Trails Plan is the culmination of a
seven-year, community-wide planning effort that began in 2018 and succeeded in achieving its primary goal
of defining a coordinated strategy for managing, maintaining, and promoting Cordova's trail network.
Management responsibilities encompass trail planning and design, construction, and funding. Final
implementation will be shared among plan partners—representing Federal, State, and City governments,
Native Corporations, and the Cordova Trails Plan committee—collaborating with individuals, businesses,
and foundations to create a diversified and cost-effective trail system.

Through these partnerships, Cordova can leverage volunteer labor, access grant opportunities not available 
to governments, receive in-kind technical assistance, and coordinate resource sharing for trail maintenance, 
leading to substantial cost savings. The plan builds on existing community input and inventory from prior 
efforts, and offers a unified framework for coordinated investment, stewardship, and grant pursuit across 
lands managed by USFS, Eyak Corporation, State of Alaska, and the City of Cordova. 

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP: Council suggested motion “to approve Resolution 08-
25-21 a resolution of the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska adopting the City of Cordova
Comprehensive Trails Plan 2025.

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: The Cordova Comprehensive Trails Plan requires no direct funding from the
City of Cordova, as implementation is driven by collaborative partnerships with federal, state, native
corporations, non-profit, and community stakeholders. Which provides leverage with volunteer labor, grant
opportunities, in-kind expertise, and shared resources to deliver a diversified, cost-effective trail network.

45



Res 08-25-21 
Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 08-25-21 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 
ADOPTING THE CITY OF CORDOVA COMPREHENSIVE TRAILS PLAN 2025 

WHEREAS, the Cordova Trails Committee is tasked with advising the Parks and 
Recreation Commission on the development of new trails, enhancement of existing trails and the 
development of additional trail resources; and 

WHEREAS, the Cordova Trails Committee developed the Cordova Comprehensive Trails 
Plan through a multiyear public process that outlines goals, strategies, and priorities for improving, 
maintaining, and expanding Cordova's trail system; and 

WHEREAS, this document is a collaborative effort involving the Cordova Trails 
Committee, the Eyak Corporation, and Federal, State, and City government entities; and  

WHEREAS, this document serves as a strategic resource designed to support funding 
applications and foster partnerships, thereby enhancing fiscal opportunities and collaborative 
initiatives.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska, does hereby adopt The City of Cordova Comprehensive Trails Plan 2025.   

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 6th DAY OF AUGUST 2025 

___________________________________ 
Kristin Smith, Mayor 

      ATTEST: 
___________________________________ 
Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

46



CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION 2025-02 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION OF 
THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL 

ADOPTION OF THE CORDOVA TRAILS COMMITTEE CITY OF 
CORDOVA COMPREHENSIVE TRAILS PLAN. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Cordova Municipal Code 3.52.050, the Cordova Parks and 
Recreation Commission is an advisory commission to the Cordova City Council established to 
advise on matters pertaining to Parks and Recreation including: 
A. Making recommendations to the city council regarding policies, planning and implementation
of plans having to do with the establishment, development, and maintenance of city parks; and
B. Making recommendations regarding the establishment and operation of recreational programs
and the development and maintenance of recreational facilities; and
C. Making recommendations regarding the parks and recreation budget.
D. Receiving, considering, and evaluating public input, opinions and recommendations regarding
parks and recreation programs in the city, and advise the city council and planning commission
of any findings; and
E. Preparing a comprehensive parks and recreation plan for approval by the council every five
years.

WHEREAS, the Cordova Trails Committee developed a Trails Plan through a public 
process that outlines goals, strategies, and priorities for improving, maintaining, and expanding 
Cordova's trail system; and 

WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Commission has reviewed the proposed Cordova 
Trails Committee Comprehensive Trails Plan and finds it consistent with the mission and goals 
of the Parks and Recreation Department, and beneficial to the community. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Parks and Recreation Commission 
of the City of Cordova, Alaska supports the adoption of the Cordova Trails Committee Trails 
Plan and recommends its approval by the City Council. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 29th DAY OF JULY 2025. 

  ______________________________ 
Commission Chair  

Attest: 
______________________________ 
Department Director  

47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



A. initially put on or 
revisited 

1) Public Safety Resources - discussion 1/20/2021

2) Ordinance change (Title 4) to ensure Council has a role in CBA approval process 9/6/2023

3) Facility condition assessments part 2 work session (did P&R on 4-19-23) - Oct '23 9/6/2023

4) City Code re: procurement, Manager spending limit trigger in a code provision 4/19/2023

5) Discuss/create a policy for established timeframes for review of City ongoing contracts 9/6/2023

6) Strategic planning work sessions (goal setting), 2/19/25, 3/19/25, next tbd 3/5/2025

7) Bonding for City streets - explore for when asphalt plants will be in town during other projects 4/3/2024

8) Enterprise funds accounting procedures 11/6/2024

9) Revisit Economic Development Property Tax Exemptions, Ordinances 1217 & 1223 12/4/2024

10) Strategic review of City investments with Blake Phillips, ACPM (Blue Umbrella) 2/4/2025

11) Fill projects - for shipyard, for businesses, potential locations 3/19/2025

12) Per ordinance 1231 - Council to revisit $3M in AMLIP to determine pay back scenarios to PF before 12/31/25 5/21/2025

13) Council to consider changes to conditional use permits for marijuana establishments as in 18.60.080 6/4/2025

B. date referred

1) Res 12-18-36 re E-911, will be back when a plan has been made 12/19/2018

2) Tiny Wings dba Anchor Bar & Liquor Store - revisit liquor license w-ABC Board if it doesn't sell in 2025 6/4/2025

3) Res 05-25-13 determining local school funding, subject to modification before approval of City FY26 budget 6/4/2025

C.
1) Capital Priorities List, Resolution 12-24-39, is in each packet - if 2 council members want to revisit the resolution

they should mention that at Pending Agenda and it can be included in the next packet for action
2) Staff quarterly reports will be in the following packets:

10/15/2025 1/21/2026 4/15/2026 7/15/2026
3) Joint City Council and School Board Meetings - twice per year, May & October

before Council mtg in May 6pm @ CHS before Sch Bd mtg Oct. or Nov.
4) Clerk's evaluation - each year in Sept (prior to budget) - next Sept 2026
5) Manager's evaluation - each year in Sept (prior to budget) - next Sept 2026
6) In May each year City will provide public outreach regarding beginning of bear season photo by Wendy Ranney

7) Each year in May or June Council will approve by Resolution, the School's budget and City's contribution
8) Quarterly work sessions on City finances (compare budget to actuals)

D.
item for action proposed date

1) …

2) …

3) …

tasking which staff: Manager/Clerk?

City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska
Pending Agenda

August 6, 2025 Regular Council Meeting

Future agenda items - topics put on PA with no specific date for inclusion on an agenda

Resolutions, Ordinances, other items that have been referred to staff or may need to be revisited

Upcoming Meetings, agenda items and/or events: with specific dates

Council adds items to Pending Agenda in this way:

Mayor Smith or the City Manager can either agree to such an item and that will automatically place it

on an agenda, or a second Council member can concur with the sponsoring Council member.

129



E.

1) Cordova Fisheries Committee: 1- Kory Blake 4- Trae Lohse 7- John Williams

auth res 10-24-32 approved Oct 2, 2024 2- Rod Jensen 5- Tyler Dillon

committee appointed 3/5/25 3- Kelsey Hayden 6- Jerry McCune

previous meetings: 3/13/25, 5/8/25

next meeting date: 9/11/2025

2) Cordova Trails Committee: 1-Elizabeth Senear 2-Toni Godes

re-auth res 11-18-29 app 11/7/18 3-Dave Zastrow 4-Ryan Schuetze

auth res 11-09-65 app 12/2/09 5-Stormy Haught 6-Michelle Hahn

F.

1) Prince William Sound Regional Citizens Advisory Council

David Janka appointed March 2024 2 year term until May 2026

2) Prince William Sound Aquaculture Corporation Board of Directors

Tommy Sheridan appointed June 2024 3 year term until Oct 2027

3) Alaska Mariculture Alliance

Sean Den Adel appointed March 2024 no specific term

City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska
Pending Agenda

August 6, 2025 Regular Council Meeting

Membership of existing advisory committees of Council formed by resolution:

City of Cordova appointed reps to various non-City Boards/Councils/Committees:

130



Res. 12-24-39 CIP List 
Page 1 of 3 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 12-24-39 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 
DESIGNATING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS  

WHEREAS, the Cordova City Council has identified several Capital Improvement projects that 
will benefit the citizens of Cordova, and in several cases the entirety of Prince William Sound; and 

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Cordova has identified the following Capital Improvement 
projects as being critical to the future well-being and economy of Cordova and the surrounding area: 

Port and Harbor  
North Harbor Efficiency and Safety 

Stabilize Breakwater Ave through sheet piling to create usable uplands for 
industrial commercial, walking corridor and parking  
Improve pedestrian safety by creating a sidewalk and boardwalk system to navigate 
between the north and south harbors. 
Provide additional cranes, laydown areas, and in-harbor fuel services 

Waste Oil Equipment /Maintenance Building 
Shipyard Expansion 
Three-Stage Dock 

Public Works 
Water Infrastructure 

Booster station at Murchison tank to improve water delivery during peak flow 
Permanent siphon at Crater Lake to improve water delivery during peak flow 
Upgrade pump stations and equipment 
Feasibility study for water service and fire protection (hydrants) to outlying areas 
Replacement and relocation of Morpac tank  

Water Equipment 
Vac truck 
Backhoe  

Sewer Infrastructure 
Replacement/upgrade of wastewater plant and SCADA 
Replacement/upgrade of all lift stations 
Replacement of force main in Odiak Slough 
Upgrade pipe infrastructure 

Sewer Equipment 
Dump truck 
Backhoe 

Streets Infrastructure 
Storm drain systems upgrades - Council Ave. and Third St. aka “jailhouse door 
system”  
Lake Ave. hillside  
Evaluation of existing storm drain systems  
Sixth St. and Seventh St. drainage, sidewalks, and street surface upgrades  
Chase Ave. upgrades including sidewalks, drainage, and new surfacing  

131



Res. 12-24-39 CIP List 
Page 2 of 3 

Replace/upgrade pedestrian walkways (Fourth St. and Adams Ave.) (Council St.), and 
(Second St. to First St.) 
Streets equipment storage building  

Streets Equipment 
Wheeled loader 
Road grader  
Backhoe  

Refuse Infrastructure 
Landfill bear fence  
Electricity to landfill  
Equipment storage building 

Refuse Equipment 
Dumpster truck  
Residential truck 
Skid steer  

Public Safety 
E-911 Implementation

Acquire and integrate new hardware and software for E-911 
Update dispatch console 

Replace Radio Structure on Ski Hill 
Mile 5 Substation Code and ADA Compliance  
Engineering and Preliminary Design of Public Safety Building Prep Site 

Parks and Recreation 
Pool Infrastructure Code and ADA Compliance 

Door and siding replacements and CMU joint repairs 
Replace pool cover 
Replace pool roof  
Replace/upgrade  HVAC and ventilation system  
Replace electrical distribution system  
ADA compliance and parking area re-grade 

Bidarki Recreation Center 
Renovate and add ADA access  
Structural repair 
Code and ADA compliance 
Facility improvements 

Eyak Lake Skater’s Cabin 
Demolish and replace 

Parks 
Playground renovations 
Replacement of playground equipment at Noel Pallas Children’s Memorial 
Playground  

Upgrade Restrooms/Buildings/Structures 
Ballfield/Cordova Municipal Park Restroom/Concession Stand – code and ADA 
compliance   
Fleming Spit restroom replacement  
Odiak Pond boardwalk and gazebo – code and ADA compliance  
Odiak Camper Park restrooms/facility improvements – code and ADA compliance.  

132



Res. 12-24-39 CIP List 
Page 3 of 3 

Parks maintenance shop facility improvements – code compliance 
Ski Hill Improvements 

Land Development 
Housing 
Improve existing unimproved ROW’s 
Cold storage  
Harbor basin expansion 

and; 

WHEREAS, some or all of these projects will be submitted to State or Federal legislators and/or 
agencies as Capital Improvement projects for the City of Cordova, Alaska. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, 
hereby designates and prioritizes the above listed projects as Capital Improvement projects. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 18th DAY OF DECEMBER 2024 

________________________________ 
David Allison, Mayor 

Attest: 

________________________________ 
Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk   

133



CALENDAR MONTH AUGUST
CALENDAR YEAR 2025
1ST DAY OF WEEK SUNDAY

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
27 28 29 30 31 1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

31 1 Notes
Legend: 
CCAB-Community Rms A&B
HSL-High School Library
CCA-Community Rm A

CCB-Community Rm B
CCM-Mayor's Conf Rm
CCER-Education Room

LN-Library Fireplace Nook
CRG-Copper River Gallery
HCR-CCMC Conference Room

2025
August

Cncl - 1st & 3rd Wed
P&Z - 2nd Tues
SchBd, Hrb Cms - 2nd Wed
CTC - 3rd Tues

P&R - last Tues
CEC - 4th Wed
Hosp Svcs Bd - last Thurs

6:30 P&Z CCAB

6:00 P&R CCM

6:00 Harbor Cms CCAB
7:00 Sch Bd HSL

5:30 CTC Board Meeting CCER

6:00 CEC Board Mtg CCER

12:00 Hosp 
Svc Bd HCR

7:00 Council reg mtg CCAB

7:00 Council reg mtg CCAB

in Cdv 8/18
8am-3pm

in Cdv 8/25
8am-3pm

CSD school year starts

Mixed 
Doubles 
Tourney

134

https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=https://www.btrcs.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/School-1st-day-of-school-title.png&imgrefurl=https://www.btrcs.org/events/first-day-school/&docid=vDj6h3N2HmcqrM&tbnid=6EyhHSpfGLt6tM:&vet=10ahUKEwitoLS1x5_UAhVhjVQKHR5nC_AQMwh7KAUwBQ..i&w=1600&h=902&bih=890&biw=1572&q=FIRST%20DAY%20OF%20SCHOOL&ved=0ahUKEwitoLS1x5_UAhVhjVQKHR5nC_AQMwh7KAUwBQ&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://www.rousespointny.com/iu/Swimming-clip-art-pictures-free-clipart-images-2.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.rousespointny.com/the-village/youthcommissionhtmlhtml.html&docid=bT2hncH6DOYAvM&tbnid=H9Ralr-lVACv5M:&vet=10ahUKEwj4pfSiyoTWAhUBzmMKHZ9sBZUQMwhbKAEwAQ..i&w=570&h=700&bih=850&biw=1467&q=hs%20swimming&ved=0ahUKEwj4pfSiyoTWAhUBzmMKHZ9sBZUQMwhbKAEwAQ&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://cdn.lsr7.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/halloween1.jpg&imgrefurl=https://www.hercampus.com/school/brandeis/10-festive-ways-get-halloween-spirit&docid=i4_VuK8HBof2tM&tbnid=FbPSrAGcVOGTYM:&vet=10ahUKEwijjMKR3sjWAhVBxmMKHThoCxMQMwjFASgJMAk..i&w=1429&h=1521&bih=849&biw=1589&q=picture%20of%20Halloween&ved=0ahUKEwijjMKR3sjWAhVBxmMKHThoCxMQMwjFASgJMAk&iact=mrc&uact=8


CALENDAR MONTH SEPTEMBER
CALENDAR YEAR 2025
1ST DAY OF WEEK SUNDAY

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
31 1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 1 2 3 4

5 6 Notes
Legend: 
CCAB-Community Rms A&B
HSL-High School Library
CCA-Community Rm A

CCB-Community Rm B
CCM-Mayor's Conf Rm
CCER-Education Room

LN-Library Fireplace Nook
CRG-Copper River Gallery
HCR-CCMC Conference Room

2025
September

Cncl - 1st & 3rd Wed
P&Z - 2nd Tues
SchBd, Hrb Cms - 2nd Wed
CTC - 3rd Tues

P&R - last Tues
CEC - 4th Wed
Hosp Svcs Bd - last Thurs

6:30 P&Z CCAB

6:00 P&R CCM

6:00 Harbor Cms CCAB
7:00 Sch Bd HSL

5:30 CTC 
Board

Mtg CCER

6:00 CEC 
Board 

Mtg CCER

12:00 Hosp 
Svc Bd HCR

7:00 Council reg mtg CCAB

7:00 Council reg mtg CCAB

Sept 1 Labor Day 
Holiday City Hall
Offices Closed

CSD Labor Day 
Holiday Sept 1

Copper River Rally VBall 9/25-27

135

https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=https://www.btrcs.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/School-1st-day-of-school-title.png&imgrefurl=https://www.btrcs.org/events/first-day-school/&docid=vDj6h3N2HmcqrM&tbnid=6EyhHSpfGLt6tM:&vet=10ahUKEwitoLS1x5_UAhVhjVQKHR5nC_AQMwh7KAUwBQ..i&w=1600&h=902&bih=890&biw=1572&q=FIRST%20DAY%20OF%20SCHOOL&ved=0ahUKEwitoLS1x5_UAhVhjVQKHR5nC_AQMwh7KAUwBQ&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://www.rousespointny.com/iu/Swimming-clip-art-pictures-free-clipart-images-2.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.rousespointny.com/the-village/youthcommissionhtmlhtml.html&docid=bT2hncH6DOYAvM&tbnid=H9Ralr-lVACv5M:&vet=10ahUKEwj4pfSiyoTWAhUBzmMKHZ9sBZUQMwhbKAEwAQ..i&w=570&h=700&bih=850&biw=1467&q=hs%20swimming&ved=0ahUKEwj4pfSiyoTWAhUBzmMKHZ9sBZUQMwhbKAEwAQ&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://cdn.lsr7.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/halloween1.jpg&imgrefurl=https://www.hercampus.com/school/brandeis/10-festive-ways-get-halloween-spirit&docid=i4_VuK8HBof2tM&tbnid=FbPSrAGcVOGTYM:&vet=10ahUKEwijjMKR3sjWAhVBxmMKHThoCxMQMwjFASgJMAk..i&w=1429&h=1521&bih=849&biw=1589&q=picture%20of%20Halloween&ved=0ahUKEwijjMKR3sjWAhVBxmMKHThoCxMQMwjFASgJMAk&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://s3.amazonaws.com/vnn-aws-sites/9151/files/2016/06/788d676002edbadc-d35f5df2edd1dfeb2b801ae2c04ed9f2.jpg&imgrefurl=http://evermanathletics.com/volleyball&docid=yLyiAJmmmxxpBM&tbnid=dgXfxGhTL67vPM:&w=736&h=736&bih=839&biw=1561&ved=0ahUKEwjc77rRp5fOAhVi4IMKHRibBjgQMwiuASgdMB0&iact=mrc&uact=8


seat/length of term email Date Elected Term Expires
Mayor: Kristin Smith March 4, 2025 March-28
3 years Mayor@cityofcordova.net

Council members:
Debra Adams March 4, 2025 March-28

3 years CouncilSeatA@cityofcordova.net

Cathy Sherman March-26
3 years CouncilSeatB@cityofcordova.net

Kasey Kinsman, Vice Mayor March 7, 2023 March-26
3 years CouncilSeatC@cityofcordova.net

Wendy Ranney March 5, 2024 March-27
3 years CouncilSeatD@cityofcordova.net July 5, 2023 elected by cncl

David Zastrow March 5, 2024 March-27
3 years CouncilSeatE@cityofcordova.net

Aaron Hansen March 4, 2025 March-28
3 years CouncilSeatF@cityofcordova.net

Mike Mickelson March 4, 2025 March-28
3 years CouncilSeatG@cityofcordova.net

length of term Date Elected Term Expires

3 years David Glasen, president March 7, 2023 March-26
dglasen@cordovasd.org

3 years Kate Trudeau March 4, 2025 March-28
ktrudeau@cordovasd.org 

3 years Henk Kruithof March 5, 2024 March-27
hkruithof@cordovasd.org March 2, 2021

3 years Emma Merritt March 4, 2025 March-28
emerritt@cordovasd.org

3 years Peter Hoepfner March-27
phoepfner@cordovasd.org

vacant

(updated 7-3-25)

City of Cordova, Alaska Elected Officials

Cordova School District School Board of Education - Elected

Mayor and City Council - Elected

& Appointed Members of City Boards and Commissions

seat up for re-appt in Nov '25

seat up for re-election in Mar '26
board/commission chair/vice

March 7, 2023
March 3, 2020

Mar 5, 2024, Mar 2, 
2021, Mar 6, 2018, 
Mar 3, 2015, Mar 6, 
2012, Mar 3, 2009, 

Mar 7, 2006

136

mailto:Mayor@cityofcordova.net
mailto:CouncilSeatA@cityofcordova.net
mailto:CouncilSeatB@cityofcordova.net
mailto:CouncilSeatC@cityofcordova.net
mailto:CouncilSeatD@cityofcordova.net
mailto:CouncilSeatE@cityofcordova.net
mailto:CouncilSeatF@cityofcordova.net
mailto:CouncilSeatG@cityofcordova.net
mailto:dglasen@cordovasd.org
mailto:ktrudeau@cordovasd.org
mailto:hkruithof@cordovasd.org
mailto:emerritt@cordovasd.org
mailto:phoepfner@cordovasd.org


length of term Date Elected Term Expires
3 years Kelsey Appleton Hayden March-26

CCMCBoardSeatE@cdvcmc.com
3 years Diane Ujioka March 5, 2024 March-27

CCMCBoardSeatC@cdvcmc.com December 19, 2023 elected by board

3 years Ann Linville, Chair March 4, 2025 March-28
CCMCBoardSeatA@cdvcmc.com March 1, 2022

3 years Shelly Kocan March 5, 2024 March-28
CCMCBoardSeatB@cdvcmc.com July 25, 2024 elected by board

3 years Liz Senear March 5, 2024 March-27
CCMCBoardSeatD@cdvcmc.com March 2, 2021

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires
3 years Mary Anne Bishop, Chair November-25

3 years Debra Adams Dec '21, Dec '24 November-27
3years Sherman Powell November-25

3 years Kate Williams May '25 November-26
3 years Krysta Williams November-26

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires
3 years Kris Ranney Dec '22 November-25
3 years Mark Hall, Vice Chair Nov '19, Dec '22 November-25
3 years Sarah Trumblee Dec '20, Dec '23 November-26
3 years Tania Harrison, Chair Mar '22, Dec '24 November-27
3 years Gail Foode Dec '23 November-26
3 years Chris Bolin Sep '17, Nov '18 November-27

Dec '21, Dec '24
3 years Sean Den Adel Dec '23 November-26

vacant

(updated 7-3-25)seat up for re-appt in Nov '25
board/commission chair

Library Board - Appointed

Hospital Services - Board of Directors - Elected

Planning Commission - Appointed

seat up for re-election in Mar '26

Nov '06, '10, '13, 
'16, '19, Dec '22

City of Cordova, Alaska Elected Officials
& Appointed Members of City Boards and Commissions

March 7, 2023
March 3, 2020

Feb '18, Dec '20, 
Dec '23

June '18, Feb '20, 
Jan '23

137

mailto:CCMCBoardSeatE@cdvcmc.com
mailto:CCMCBoardSeatC@cdvcmc.com
mailto:CCMCBoardSeatA@cdvcmc.com
mailto:CCMCBoardSeatB@cdvcmc.com
mailto:CCMCBoardSeatD@cdvcmc.com


length of term Date Appointed Term Expires

3 years Ryan Schuetze Dec '23 November-26
3 years Andy Craig, Chair November-25

3 years Garrett Collins Dec '23 November-26
3 years Ken Jones November-25

3 years Hein Kruithof Dec '23 November-26

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires
3 years Kelsey Hayden Dec '24 November-27
3 years Henk Kruithof Nov '19, Dec '22 November-25
3 years Danny Carpenter Jul '25 November-27
3 years Kara Rodrigues Dec '23 November-26
3 years Gabrielle Brown Jan '25 November-25
3 years Jim Fritsch June '25 November-28
3 years Erin Cole May '24 November-26

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires
3 years Kris Ranney, PC member Mar '23 appt'd by PC November-25
3 years Heather Hall, professional member November-25

3 years Sylvia Lange, NVE member Nov '22, Nov '19 appt'd by NVE November-25
3 years Christy Mog, professional member Dec '23 November-26
3 years vacant , historical society member November-27
3 years Jamie Foode, professional member Jan '25 November-27
3 years Jim Casement, public member Dec '23 November-26

vacant

(updated 7-3-25)seat up for re-appt in Nov '25
board/commission chair

Parks and Recreation Commission - Appointed

City of Cordova, Alaska Elected Officials
& Appointed Members of City Boards and Commissions

Aug '16, Feb '20, Mar 
'23

Nov '16, '19 & Dec 
'22

seat up for re-election in Mar '26

Feb '13, Nov '16, 
Nov '19, Dec '22

Historic Preservation Commission - Appointed

Harbor Commission - Appointed

138


	080625 Chinook Auto Rental Memo
	20250731 Mayor's Report
	08_06_2025 CM report
	PW Mid Summer Update
	P&Z Department Plan to give Public Comment on UA subdivison
	Harbor 2025 2nd Quarter Report
	correspondence primer
	07-17-25 DNR request for comments to sell or lease ADL 68214
	2025-17-07 Preliminary Decision ADL 68214-signed combined.pdf
	2025-17-07 ADL68214 - PD - signed.pdf
	2025-17-07 ADL68214 Attach A vicinity map-PD.pdf
	2025-17-07 ADL68214 Attach B  PN.pdf


	07-22-25 City of Cordova AMHS winter 2025 26 comments
	07-22-25 Public Notice-Cordova-Subdivision-Development-and-Disposal-Plan
	Cordova Subdivision Development and Disposal Plan Public Notice.pdf
	UALM_PublicNotice_GU_CV_0004.pdf
	UALM_PublicNotice_GU_CV_0014.pdf

	07-29-25 Thank you from CHS class of 2025
	Ordinance 1232-all
	ADPAD01.tmp
	CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA
	6.12.030 Alcoholic beverages—Consumption in public places.
	6.12.040 Exceptions.



	Ordinance 1233-all
	Res 08-25-21-all
	ADP9C97.tmp
	CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA
	RESOLUTION 08-25-21
	PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 6th DAY OF AUGUST 2025


	pending agenda, cip, cals, eaols
	Sheet1
	augsept.pdf
	Aug 25
	09-25.pdf
	Aug 25


	08-06-25 lists.pdf
	lists





